
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 
Monthly Report: Public Works 


Town of Cortland 
 
To: Mayor, Russ Stokes 
From: John Kocher 
 
07/22/20 to 08/18/20 
 


 
 
Streets and  maintenance 
 


• Patch pot holes as needed 
• Hauled sidewalk squares from Nina to Curran from sidewalk replacement 
• Started planning sidewalk deflection areas starting in Cortland Estates 


approximately 33 address have been completed to date. Some addresses have 
more than one deflection 


• Painted storage facility, sign is ready for pick up today 
•  Cleaned up trees from storm damage  
• 50 hour service completed on skid steer  
• Installed manhole protection rings around 13 manholes that were too high in 


the street  
    
 
Storm Sewer 
 


Cleaned detention pond sidewalks from Klein and ends on the other side of Prairiefield 
(Cortland Estates) 
Installed catch basin and ran pipe to drain low area in Suppeland park. Hauled in dirt and finish 
grading almost complete  


 
Thank you, John 





		Monthly Report: Public Works

		Town of Cortland

		To: Mayor, Russ Stokes

		Streets and  maintenance

		Storm Sewer










 


 


 


 


Water and Wastewater Department Monthly Report 
July 2020 


            Listed below is a summary of the activities the Water and Wastewater Department performed during July. 


  


GENERAL 
• Completed work orders for:   


Shut-Off Service:   0 


Turn On Service:   0 


Final Read:   10 


Courtesy Read:   0 


Julie Locate Requests:  89 


New Meters Installed:  0 


Existing Meters Replaced With New Meters: 1 


Other: 1    


Total Work Orders: 12 


 


 


            WASTEWATER 
• Approx. 9,549,000 gallons flowed into the treatment plant. 


• Approx. 17,023,000 gallons were discharged 


• The Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) was completed and filed with the IEPA. 


• Completed monthly sampling and monitoring well samples. 


• Mowed all wastewater facilities. 


• Completed sewer main jetting. 


• The generator at Chestnut Grove lift station was repaired. (turbo was ingesting oil) 


• Completed and submitted a Phosphorus removal plan to the IEPA. 


• Vac-cleaned lift station wet wells. 


• Completed and submitted the damn inspection reports for the STP to the IDNR. 
 
 
 
 
 







                              Influent 


 


Effluent Discharge  


 


0


2,000,000


4,000,000


6,000,000


8,000,000


10,000,000


12,000,000


14,000,000


16,000,000


18,000,000


10
,3


15
,0


00


9,
93


6,
00


0


14
,2


02
,0


00


14
,8


56
,4


60


12
,8


50
,0


00


10
,3


17
,0


00


12
,7


92
,0


00


10
,3


77
,0


00


13
,0


27
,0


00


11
,3


96
,0


00


17
,0


24
,0


00


11
,4


06
,0


00


9,
54


9,
00


0


Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20


0


5,000,000


10,000,000


15,000,000


20,000,000


25,000,000


Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 Jul-20







    WATER 
• Completed daily lab samples related to water quality.  (pH, Fluoride, Chlorine, Hardness) 


• Monthly chemical injection reports were complete and mailed to the IEPA. 


• Completed monthly sampling. 


• Distributed shut-off tags. 


• Repaired CL2 at Well 4. 


• Repaired 2 b-boxes at the Cortland Car Wash. 


• Completed maintenance on 13 fire hydrants. 


• Completed meter reading for utility billing. 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 
Well 1     108,500 
Well 2       69,200 
Well 3   1,562,000 
Well 4   7,155,100 
 
Total pumpage of treated water from wells for  July:  8,894,800 
 


 


 


0


1,000,000


2,000,000


3,000,000


4,000,000


5,000,000


6,000,000


7,000,000


8,000,000


9,000,000


10,000,000


Well Pumpage 


Well 4 Well 3 Well 2 Well 1





















2020 MONTHLY PERMITS ISSUED  JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC Yearly Total
NEW CONSTRUCTION
RESIDENTIAL No building 1 3 4
INDUSTRIAL / COMMERCIAL BLDG permits 0
SALT SHED issued in 0
REMODELING/RENOVATION January
ELECTRICAL / ELEC SERVICE UPGRADE 0
PLUMBING 1 1
FURNACE 1 1
REMODEL / REPAIR / ALTERATION 3 2 1 6
REPLACEMENT DOORS 0
REPLACEMENT WINDOWS 1 2 2 2 1 8
ROOF 4 5 4 4 10 27
ROOF OVER PORCH/BACK DOOR COVER 0
SIDING 1 2 3
ADDITION 1 1
RADON MITIGATION 0
DEMOLITION
GARAGE  0
HOUSE 0
INDUSTRIAL / COMMERCIAL BLDG 0
OTHER 0
MISCELLANEOUS
ELECTRICAL ‐  WATER TOWER 0
FIRE ALARM SYSTEM 0
FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM 0
IRRIGATION SYSTEM ELECTRICAL 0
LIFT STATION 0
WATER SERVICE 1 1
HOT WATER HEATER 1 1
SEWER REPAIR 0
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURES 0
Reactivate Permit to Receive Final Occ Cert 0
SITE GRADING 1 1
WIRELESS CELL ANTENNA 0
ALL OTHER IMPROVEMENTS
AES FIRE RADIO 0
AIR CONDITIONER 0
DECK 1 2 3 6
DECK ‐ PRIVACY WALL 0
DRIVEWAY / DRIVEWAY EXT 1 2 2 3 8
EXCAVATION 0
FENCE 8 11 10 29
FIREPLACE 0
GARAGE 1 1
GARAGE HEATER 0
GRAVEL LOT EXTENSION 0
OUTDOOR FIREPLACE/ PATIO WALL 0
PERGOLA/GAZEBO 0
PARKING LOT NEW 0
PARKING LOT ADDITION 0
PAVING 0
POOL / HOT TUB 3 3 6
PORCH  0
RAMP 0
SHED 2 2
SIGN 0
SOLAR PANELS 4 1 3 2 2 12
CONCRETE STEPS/STOOP  0
STORAGE BUILDING 0
UTILITY PERMIT 1 3 4
WHOLE HOUSE GENERATOR 0


TOTAL 0 10 8 15 17 28 44 0 0 0 0 0 122


2020 monthly permit count report








 


TOWN OF CORTLAND 


BOARD OF TRUSTEES 


MEETING PACKET 


AGENDA 


AUGUST 24, 2020 








Citizens are encouraged to submit their concerns and questions to the Mayor in writing prior to the meeting.   
The Mayor will refer issues to the appropriate staff as needed. 


TOWN OF CORTLAND 
Town Hall 


59 S. Somonauk Road 
Cortland, IL  60112 


BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Town Board Meeting 


Monday 
August 24, 2020 


7:00 P.M.  
 
 
I. Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance / Roll Call 


 
II. Approval of Agenda 


 
III. Public Wishing to Speak  


 
IV. Consent Agenda 


a. Approve Town Board Minutes for July 27, 2020 
b. Approve Expenditure Reports for June 2020 
c. Accept Treasurer Reports for June 2020 
 


V. New Business for Discussion and Possible Action 
a. IEPA Phosphorus Study – Study to be conducted by Fehr-Graham for $15,000  


[monies to come from sewer funds] 
b. Authorize Mayor to enter into lease agreement with Westside Tractors for Snow 


Program Rental Equipment for Public Works [monies to come from General Fund 
Equipment Rental line] 


c. Worthington Properties LTD Redevelopment Agreement and General Intangible 
Control Agreement (dated June 30, 2020) – Authorize the Mayor to execute necessary 
documents 


d. Discussion regarding employee benefits – Wes Levy 
 


VI. Department Head Reports  
Public Works, Water/Wastewater, Police Department and monthly Permit report 
 


VII. Comments/Concerns 
 


VIII. President Report 
 
IX. Adjournment 








 


Approved:  ___________ 
Attest:  _________ 


Page 1 of 3 
 


TOWN OF CORTLAND 
Town Hall 


59 S. Somonauk Road 
Cortland, IL  60112 


BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Town Board Meeting 


Monday 
July 27, 2020 


7:00 P.M.  
 
 
Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance / Roll Call 


 
Mayor Stokes called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Those in attendance recited the Pledge 
of Allegiance. Deputy Clerk Liz Peerboom called the roll call and the following Trustees were 
present:  Doug Corson, Charmaine Fioretto, Rick Robins, and Mike Siewierski. Trustees Brad 
Stone and Jim Walker were absent. Quorum was present.  Also present were Town Attorney 
Kevin Buick, Police Chief Lin Dargis, Director of Public Works John Kocher, Water/Waste 
Water Director Joel Summerhill, Wes Levy, of Lauterbach and Amen, and Zoning Administrator 
Anna Kurtzman. 


 
Approval of Agenda 
Trustee Robins made a motion to approve the agenda, seconded by Trustee Corson. 
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Public Wishing to Speak  
James Baird, 72 E. North Avenue, had questions for the Board. He asked how many 
people are employed by the Town of Cortland. A figure was given, but an actual figure 
will be gotten from the Finance Department and given to the Bairds, if necessary. Mr. 
Baird also asked if the website complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Deputy 
Clerk Liz Peerboom advised that she will check with the Town’s IT contractor and get 
back to him. Mr. Baird then asked if the proposed noise ordinance was aimed at them. 
Mayor Stokes said that it was not. Mrs. Baird expressed her disagreement, adding that a 
train registers louder than what is being proposed. Mr. Baird then asked the Mayor if he 
fully supports the decisions of his officers. Mayor Stokes advised that the police 
department makes decisions on a day to day basis, and that he does support the officers. 
 
Mayor Stokes advised that time was up for the public wishing to speak. 
 
Consent Agenda 
Deputy Clerk Liz Peerboom read the consent agenda into the record. Trustee Robins made a 
motion to approve the Town Board Minutes for June 22, 2020, the Expenditure Reports for 
April and May 2020, and to accept the Treasurer Reports for April and May 2020, seconded by 
Trustee Siewierski. Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote, with Trustees Stone and Walker 
being absent. 
 
 







Town Board Minutes 
July 27, 2020 
 


Approved:  _____________ 
Attest:  _________ 


Page 2 of 3 
 


 
New Business for Discussion and Possible Action 
Resolution to Appoint Town Clerk as Authorized Agent for IMRF 
Trustee Corson made a motion to appoint Town Clerk Cheryl Aldis as the Authorized 
Agent for IMRF, seconded by Trustee Robins. Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote, 
with Trustees Stone and Walker being absent.                                            Res 2020-05 
 
Request from Town Treasurer for authorization to proceed with arranging the 
refinancing of Resource Bank Promissory Note, Series 2011, Original Amount 
$655,200.00 (2011 Purchase of 250 Halwood Street property) 
Wes Levy, of Lauterbach and Amen advised that this is basically a refinance of the loan 
that was taken in 2011. There was a short discussion regarding the adjustable interest 
rate as opposed to the fixed interest rate. Mr. Levy said that he will discuss that with the 
bank. This request is just to allow him to proceed with arranging the financing. He added 
that most banks do not offer fixed rate financing to municipalities. Trustee Fioretto said 
that she was afraid of an adjustable rate, while Trustee Robins said that he was in favor 
of the adjustable rate. 
 
Trustee Robins made a motion to approve the request from the Town Treasurer for the 
authorization to proceed with arranging the refinancing of Resource Bank Promissory 
Note, Series 2011, Original Amount $655,200.00 (2011 Purchase of 250 Halwood Street 
property), seconded by Trustee Corson. Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote, with 
Trustees Stone and Walker being absent. 
 
An Ordinance Amending Title 5 “Police Regulations,” Chapter 4 “Noise,” Section 
5-4-2 “hours of the Cortland Town Code 
Trustee Robins made a motion to approve an Ordinance Amending Title 5 “Police 
Regulations,” Chapter 4 “Noise,” Section 5-4-2 “hours of the Cortland Town Code, 
seconded by Trustee Siewierski.  
 
Mrs. Baird started to speak, but Mayor Stokes advised her that she had had her time to 
speak. Chief Dargis advised that this change would put the Town in line with other 
municipalities in the area. After some commotion in the audience, Mayor Stokes asked 
the Police Chief to escort Mr. Bard out of the Town Hall. Mrs. Baird continued to say that 
Chief Dargis was giving false information. Trustee Robins also asked for a definition of 
the designation dB. Chief Dargis advised that it means decibels. Trustee Fioretto said 
that she has researched this quite extensively and wanted a frame of reference for 
something that might be 75 decibels. Chief Dargis advised that a gun shot is about 85 
decibels. 
 
Roll call vote. Yeas: Trustees Fioretto, Robins, Siewierski, and Mayor Stokes. Nay:  
Trustee Corson. Absent:  Trustees Stone and Walker.     4-Yea, 1-Nay, 2-Absent.  Motion 
carried.                                                            Ord 2020-14 
  







Town Board Minutes 
July 27, 2020 
 


Approved:  _____________ 
Attest:  _________ 


Page 3 of 3 
 


 
Approve the expenditure of $30,000 for a Risk and Resilience Assessment and 
Emergency Response Plan 
Mayor Stokes advised that the explanation item was in the backup. Trustee Corson made 
a motion to approve the expenditure of $30,000 for a Risk and Resilience Assessment 
and Emergency Response Plan, seconded by Trustee Robins. Motion carried by 
unanimous roll call vote, with Trustees Stone and Walker being absent. 
 
Department Head Reports 
The Department Head reports were distributed in the agenda packet.  
 
Comments/Concerns: 
Trustee Robins advised that he followed a bus from Elburn to Cortland and was happy to 
see this; he would like to see another bus come to Cortland. He also advised that he took 
offense to a comment about Cortland being a retirement community. 
 
President Report 
Mayor Stokes did not have a report. 
 
Adjournment 
Trustee Robins made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Trustee Corson. 
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote, with Trustees Stone and Walker being absent. 
Meeting adjourned 7:26 at p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Liz Peerboom, Deputy Clerk 
 








TOWN OF CORTLAND Check Register - Generic: Month (Detail w/ GL Account Title) Page:     1


Check Issue Dates: 6/1/2020 - 6/30/2020 Aug 18, 2020  04:25PM


Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice GL Account Title Amount


Date # Payee # GL Account


06/05/20 39651 3-D AUTO REPAIR INC 052020 2005 FORD F250 - IGNITION C 17680 07-7400-241 M&O: VEH & EQUIP 443.94


06/05/20 39651 3-D AUTO REPAIR INC 060120 2005 FORD F250 IGNITION COI 17744 06-7300-241 M&O: VEH & EQUIP 685.39


06/05/20 39651 3-D AUTO REPAIR INC 060120 2005 FORD F250 IGNITION COI 17744 07-7400-241 M&O: VEH & EQUIP 685.39


06/05/20 39651 3-D AUTO REPAIR INC 052920 2007 FORD F350 - REPLACE F 17748 01-6100-241 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINT. 281.95


06/05/20 39652 BATTERIES PLUS BULBS 052820 BATTERY FOR GENERATOR P27190150 01-6100-241 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINT. 48.95


06/05/20 39653 CDW GOVERNMENT INC 051420 PRINTER AND TONER FOR PD XVG4248 12-6200-351 OFFICE EQUIP & MAINT 372.95


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 0555014107 060520 01-6100-219 ELECTRIC - STREET LIGHTS 2,632.18


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 2371151041 060520 01-6100-219 ELECTRIC - STREET LIGHTS 264.79


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 2863057150 060520 01-6100-316 UTILITIES 35.52


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 0403167171 060520 01-6100-316 UTILITIES 31.18


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 1565283053 060520 13-8000-840 AIRPORT ROAD UTILITIES 21.00


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 3683145005 060520 01-6100-219 ELECTRIC - STREET LIGHTS 12.54


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 0459043031 060520 01-6100-219 ELECTRIC - STREET LIGHTS 62.99


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 0723100114 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 74.91


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 4707129051 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 26.62


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 0419047171 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 197.24


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 7347065022 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 107.86


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 0403114054 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 349.51


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 5715097078 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 90.54


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 0993022049 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 2,886.37


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 0481166009 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 25.01


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 3974033034 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 25.48


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 1239090004 060520 07-7400-221 UTILITIES 189.92


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 5631039010 060520 07-7400-221 UTILITIES 184.05


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 2875156024 060520 07-7400-221 UTILITIES 673.64


06/05/20 39654 COMED 060520 ACCT # 3567169021 060520 07-7400-221 UTILITIES 2,009.92


06/05/20 39655 CONSERV FS INC 052720 CURLEX ERO BLANKET 40009530 01-6100-224 STREET REPAIR MATERIALS 147.30


06/05/20 39656 COPS INC 052620 BELLINGER WORKWEAR - S& 10523 12-6200-199 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 415.40


06/05/20 39656 COPS INC 060120 SAWYER WORKWEAR - GLOC 10601 12-6200-199 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 162.18


06/05/20 39657 CSR BOBCAT INC 052920 KEROSENE 142304 01-6100-371 FUEL 25.45


06/05/20 39658 DEKALB LAWN & EQUIPMENT C 052820 EU3000 GENERATOR SERVIC 71862 01-6100-241 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINT. 10.21


06/05/20 39659 DEL'S FAMILY LANDSCAPING C 042220 FY20 - WEEDING, PLANTERS -  INV-046/202 01-6100-242 TOWN HALL MAINTENANCE 260.00


06/05/20 39659 DEL'S FAMILY LANDSCAPING C 042220 FY20 - WEEDING, PLANTERS -  INV-046/202 01-6100-237 PARKS - MISC GROUNDS MAINT 680.00


06/05/20 39659 DEL'S FAMILY LANDSCAPING C 051920 DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION  INV-087/202 01-6100-237 PARKS - MISC GROUNDS MAINT 705.00


06/05/20 39659 DEL'S FAMILY LANDSCAPING C 051920 DELIVERY AND INSTALLATION  INV-087/202 01-6100-242 TOWN HALL MAINTENANCE 740.00


06/05/20 39659 DEL'S FAMILY LANDSCAPING C 043020 FY 20 -  APRIL MOWING MC-005/2020 01-6100-234 PARKS - MOWING 1,620.00


06/05/20 39660 DIVERSIFIED BENEFIT SERVIC 060220 JUNE 105-HRA 306096 01-6000-131 EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE 102.00


06/05/20 39661 DURDAN, DOUG 052220 OVERPAYMENT TO W/S ACCT  052220.WSO 06-1000 CASH IN BANK - GENL CKG 56.16


06/05/20 39662 FOSTER, BUICK, CONKLIN & LU 052120 FY20 - 2020 GENERAL COUNS 32944 01-6000-211 LEGAL EXPENSE 1,093.75


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







TOWN OF CORTLAND Check Register - Generic: Month (Detail w/ GL Account Title) Page:     2


Check Issue Dates: 6/1/2020 - 6/30/2020 Aug 18, 2020  04:25PM


Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice GL Account Title Amount


Date # Payee # GL Account


06/05/20 39662 FOSTER, BUICK, CONKLIN & LU 052120 2020 GENERAL COUNSEL 32944 01-6000-211 LEGAL EXPENSE 1,181.25


06/05/20 39662 FOSTER, BUICK, CONKLIN & LU 052120 2020 PLAN COMMISSION 32944 01-6000-211 LEGAL EXPENSE 87.50


06/05/20 39662 FOSTER, BUICK, CONKLIN & LU 052120 J20-1 ROBINSON FARM UNIT 5 32944 01-6000-210 LEGAL FEES: REIMBURSABLE 262.50


06/05/20 39663 FRONTIER C/O MITEL 052020 TOWN HALL 33975551 01-6000-314 TELEPHONE 227.74


06/05/20 39663 FRONTIER C/O MITEL 052020 POLICE 33975551 12-6200-314 TELEPHONE 91.07


06/05/20 39663 FRONTIER C/O MITEL 052020 SEWER 33975551 06-7300-314 TELEPHONE 42.28


06/05/20 39663 FRONTIER C/O MITEL 052020 WATER 33975551 07-7400-314 TELEPHONE 42.28


06/05/20 39663 FRONTIER C/O MITEL 052020 PUBLIC WORKS 33975551 01-6100-314 TELEPHONE 55.27


06/05/20 39664 ICCI INC 051520 J20-1 ROBINSON FARMS UNIT  201200504 01-6300-215 ZONING ADM: REIMBURSABLE 747.50


06/05/20 39664 ICCI INC 051520 FY 20 ZONING SERVICES - 4/2 201200504 01-6300-213 PLANNING/ZONING/BUILDING 812.50


06/05/20 39664 ICCI INC 051520 FY 21 ZONING SERVICES - 4/2 201200504 01-6300-213 PLANNING/ZONING/BUILDING 227.50


06/05/20 39664 ICCI INC 052820 J18-2 ROBINSON FARM UNIT 4 201200506 01-6300-215 ZONING ADM: REIMBURSABLE 325.00


06/05/20 39664 ICCI INC 052820 J20-1  ROBINSON FARM UNIT  201200506 01-6300-215 ZONING ADM: REIMBURSABLE 130.00


06/05/20 39664 ICCI INC 052820 ZONING SERVICES 5/10/20-5/2 201200506 01-6300-213 PLANNING/ZONING/BUILDING 292.50


06/05/20 39665 ILLINOIS RURAL WATER ASSN 052020 MEMBERSHIP DUES 7/1/20-6/3 28534 07-7400-311 OFFICE EXPENSE 234.79


06/05/20 39665 ILLINOIS RURAL WATER ASSN 052020 MEMBERSHIP DUES 7/1/20-6/3 28534 06-7300-311 OFFICE EXPENSE 234.79


06/05/20 39666 KAR FRE FLOWERS 052120 FLOWERS/PLANTER FOR RITA 316329/1 01-6000-331 TRAVEL & TRAINING 65.45


06/05/20 39667 LAKESHORE RECYCLING SYST 051520 DUMPSTERS FOR SPRING CL 0004437343 03-6500-421 COMMUNITY PROGRAMS 1,750.00


06/05/20 39668 MCCALL'S PRINTING EXPRESS  052120 WATER REPORTS 35503 07-7400-311 OFFICE EXPENSE 498.15


06/05/20 39669 MENARDS 051320 OIL, TOILET PAPER, TRIM SPO 26449 01-6100-232 MAINTENANCE TOWN GARAGE 41.71


06/05/20 39669 MENARDS 051820 AC2 GREEN TREATED BOARD 26775 06-7300-243 M&O: SEWER PLANT 65.98


06/05/20 39670 METRONET 052820 INTERNET 052820 06-7300-311 OFFICE EXPENSE 49.95


06/05/20 39670 METRONET 052820 INTERNET 052820 07-7400-311 OFFICE EXPENSE 49.95


06/05/20 39671 MID-CITY OFFICE PRODUCTS I 051920 DISINFECTANT WIPES 5709789-0 01-6000-312 OFFICE SUPPLIES 31.98


06/05/20 39671 MID-CITY OFFICE PRODUCTS I 052020 SHREDDER BAGS, HAND SOA 571142-0 01-6000-312 OFFICE SUPPLIES 81.29


06/05/20 39671 MID-CITY OFFICE PRODUCTS I 052020 SHREDDER BAGS, SHIPPING  571142-1 01-6000-312 OFFICE SUPPLIES 36.55


06/05/20 39671 MID-CITY OFFICE PRODUCTS I 052020 COPY STAMP 571152-0 01-6000-312 OFFICE SUPPLIES 12.95


06/05/20 39672 MP2 ENERGY NE LLC 060520 LDC # 0723100114 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 51.07


06/05/20 39672 MP2 ENERGY NE LLC 060520 LDC # 4707129051 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 2.51


06/05/20 39672 MP2 ENERGY NE LLC 060520 LDC # 0419047171 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 203.81


06/05/20 39672 MP2 ENERGY NE LLC 060520 LDC # 7347065022 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 62.57


06/05/20 39672 MP2 ENERGY NE LLC 060520 LDC # 0403114054 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 476.01


06/05/20 39672 MP2 ENERGY NE LLC 060520 LDC # 5715097078 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 80.45


06/05/20 39672 MP2 ENERGY NE LLC 060520 LDC # 0993022049 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 3,727.37


06/05/20 39672 MP2 ENERGY NE LLC 060520 LDC # 4188054000 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 10.11


06/05/20 39672 MP2 ENERGY NE LLC 060520 LDC # 3974033034 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES .84


06/05/20 39672 MP2 ENERGY NE LLC 060520 LDC # 1239090004 060520 07-7400-221 UTILITIES 55.93


06/05/20 39672 MP2 ENERGY NE LLC 060520 LDC # 5631039010 060520 07-7400-221 UTILITIES 78.22


06/05/20 39672 MP2 ENERGY NE LLC 060520 LDC # 2875156024 060520 07-7400-221 UTILITIES 351.98


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







TOWN OF CORTLAND Check Register - Generic: Month (Detail w/ GL Account Title) Page:     3


Check Issue Dates: 6/1/2020 - 6/30/2020 Aug 18, 2020  04:25PM


Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice GL Account Title Amount


Date # Payee # GL Account


06/05/20 39672 MP2 ENERGY NE LLC 060520 LDC # 3567169021 060520 07-7400-221 UTILITIES 1,688.00


06/05/20 39673 NICOR 060520 59 S SOMONAUK RD 060520 01-6100-316 UTILITIES 197.60


06/05/20 39673 NICOR 060520 250 S HALWOOD ST 060520 01-6100-316 UTILITIES 875.63


06/05/20 39673 NICOR 060520 54 MARY ALDIS DR 060520 01-6100-316 UTILITIES 443.06


06/05/20 39673 NICOR 060520 238 E CORTLAND CENTER RD 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES .00


06/05/20 39673 NICOR 060520 227 S SOMONAUK RD 060520 07-7400-221 UTILITIES 176.96


06/05/20 39673 NICOR 060520 91 N SPRUCE ST 060520 07-7400-221 UTILITIES 216.39


06/05/20 39673 NICOR 060520 100 S LLANOS ST 060520 07-7400-221 UTILITIES 225.88


06/05/20 39673 NICOR 060520 156 E NORTH AVE 060520 06-7300-221 UTILITIES 227.72


06/05/20 39674 NORTHWESTERN MEDICINE KI 052920 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PRO 2020-16 01-6000-331 TRAVEL & TRAINING 714.00


06/05/20 39675 PDC LABORATORIES INC 052120 TOTAL COLIFORM AND E COLI  I9416699 07-7400-345 CHEMICALS & TESTING 156.00


06/05/20 39675 PDC LABORATORIES INC 052720 WASTEWATER DISCHARGE T I9417291 06-7300-345 WASTEWATER TESTING 217.80


06/05/20 39675 PDC LABORATORIES INC 052820 FLUORIDE BY PROBE I9417404 07-7400-345 CHEMICALS & TESTING 48.00


06/05/20 39676 PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE PO 051420 FY 20 - POSTAGE 051420 01-6000-313 POSTAGE 15.75


06/05/20 39676 PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE PO 051420 FY 20 - POSTAGE 051420 01-6300-351 OFFICE EXPENSE 16.73


06/05/20 39676 PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE PO 051420 FY 20 - POSTAGE 051420 01-6000-313 POSTAGE 7.38


06/05/20 39676 PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE PO 051420 FY 20 - POSTAGE 051420 01-6000-313 POSTAGE 78.25


06/05/20 39676 PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE PO 051420 FY 20 - POSTAGE 051420 12-6200-313 POSTAGE 22.15


06/05/20 39676 PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE PO 051420 FY 20 - POSTAGE 051420 07-7400-311 OFFICE EXPENSE 110.74


06/05/20 39677 PLIC - SBD GRAND ISLAND 051820 LIFE, AD&D - JUNE 2020 051820 01-2100 HEALTH INS WITHHELD 260.80


06/05/20 39678 SHAW SUBURBAN MEDIA 053120 REMOVE TRUCK PARKING NO 0520100251 01-6300-216 ZONING ADMINISTRATION FEES 385.02


06/05/20 39679 SUN LIFE ASSURANCE COMPA 051520 DENTAL PREMIUMS, JUNE 202 051520 01-2100 HEALTH INS WITHHELD 596.10


06/05/20 39680 ULINE 051920 SAFETY GRANT, PW - 7 STEP  120117210 06-7300-491 GRANT EXPENSE 1,016.00


06/05/20 39680 ULINE 051920 7 STEP WORK PLATFORM - R 120117210 01-6100-241 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINT. 221.39


06/05/20 39681 UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AME 051920 COVID-19 - 4 WEEK TRUCK RE 181472504-0 01-6100-241 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINT. 1,249.00


06/05/20 39681 UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AME 051920 COVID-19 - 4 WEEK TRUCK RE 181472504-0 06-7300-241 M&O: VEH & EQUIP 624.50


06/05/20 39681 UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AME 051920 COVID-19 - 4 WEEK TRUCK RE 181472504-0 07-7400-241 M&O: VEH & EQUIP 624.50


06/05/20 39681 UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AME 051920 COVID-19 - 4 WEEK TRUCK RE 181472504-0 01-6100-241 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINT. 16.65


06/05/20 39681 UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AME 051920 COVID-19 - 4 WEEK TRUCK RE 181472504-0 06-7300-241 M&O: VEH & EQUIP 16.65


06/05/20 39681 UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AME 051920 COVID-19 - 4 WEEK TRUCK RE 181472504-0 07-7400-241 M&O: VEH & EQUIP 16.66


06/05/20 39682 USABLUEBOOK 051220 COVID-19 - TOTAL SOLUTIONS  234014 07-7400-243 M&O: WELL SYSTEM 36.39


06/05/20 39682 USABLUEBOOK 051220 COVID-19 - TOTAL SOLUTIONS  234014 06-7300-243 M&O: SEWER PLANT 36.39


06/05/20 39683 WATER REMEDIATION TECHNO 060120 BASE TREATMENT CAHRGE -  017723 07-7400-222 RADIUM REMOVAL PROCESSING 5,508.30


06/05/20 39683 WATER REMEDIATION TECHNO 060120 BASE TREATMENT CHARGE -  017724 07-7400-222 RADIUM REMOVAL PROCESSING 2,399.33


06/05/20 39684 WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEA 052220 COPIER LEASE 5/18/20-6/17/20 5010488769 01-6000-351 OFFICE EQUIP & MAINT 264.87


06/05/20 39685 WEX BANK 051620 CAR WASHES - PD 65435407 12-6200-241 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 25.00


06/05/20 39685 WEX BANK 051620 GASOLINE - PD 65435407 12-6200-371 GAS & PETROLEUM 811.36


06/05/20 39685 WEX BANK 051620 GASOLINE - PW 65435407 01-6100-371 FUEL 158.74


06/05/20 39685 WEX BANK 051620 GASOLINE - SEWER 65435407 06-7300-371 GAS & PETROLEUM 87.88


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







TOWN OF CORTLAND Check Register - Generic: Month (Detail w/ GL Account Title) Page:     4


Check Issue Dates: 6/1/2020 - 6/30/2020 Aug 18, 2020  04:25PM


Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice GL Account Title Amount


Date # Payee # GL Account


06/05/20 39685 WEX BANK 051620 GASOLINE - WATER 65435407 07-7400-371 GAS & PETROLEUM 205.06


06/05/20 39686 WINTERS NURSERIES & LAND 060220 RED SUNSET MAPLE 92053 01-6100-232 MAINTENANCE TOWN GARAGE 300.00


06/10/20 39626 HARRIS, ROBERT J., III 043020 FY20 - REIMBURSEMENT, CLO 043020 12-6200-312 OFFICE SUPPLIES V 19.38-


06/10/20 39626 HARRIS, ROBERT J., III 043020 FY21 - REIMBURSEMENT, MAT 043020 03-6500-421 COMMUNITY PROGRAMS V 31.52-


06/10/20 39687 HARRIS, ROBERT J., III 043020 FY20 - REIMBURSEMENT, CLO 043020 12-6200-312 OFFICE SUPPLIES 19.38


06/10/20 39687 HARRIS, ROBERT J., III 043020 FY21 - REIMBURSEMENT, MAT 043020 03-6500-421 COMMUNITY PROGRAMS 31.52


06/19/20 39688 ARNDT AUTOMOTIVE 050120 2017 FORD EXPLORER - COD 0051571 12-6200-241 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 390.35


06/19/20 39689 BINGHAM, ARTHUR & JULIE 060420 MULCH 431 01-6100-237 PARKS - MISC GROUNDS MAINT 400.00


06/19/20 39690 BLP CONSTRUCTION 051220 PULVERIZED TOPSOIL PICK U 1803 01-6100-224 STREET REPAIR MATERIALS 800.00


06/19/20 39691 CINTAS CORPORATIO LOC. 355 031820 FY 20 - T-SHIRTS, SWEATSHIR 1901137438 01-6100-198 UNIFORMS 274.84


06/19/20 39691 CINTAS CORPORATIO LOC. 355 061620 SHOP TOWELS, HAND CLEAN 4053324109 01-6100-232 MAINTENANCE TOWN GARAGE 134.65


06/19/20 39692 COMED 061920 ACCT # 2746057001 061920 01-6100-316 UTILITIES 26.97


06/19/20 39693 COMMUNICATIONS DIRECT INC 060820 LABOR FOR CAMERA SYSTEM SR120432 12-6200-550 TECHNOLOGY UPGRADES 500.00


06/19/20 39694 CONSERV FS INC 060520 DIESELEX GOLD ULTRA LS CL 121013157 01-6100-371 FUEL 561.48


06/19/20 39694 CONSERV FS INC 060820 CUREX ERO BLANKET, STAPL 40009633 01-6100-224 STREET REPAIR MATERIALS 123.70


06/19/20 39694 CONSERV FS INC 060920 CURLEX ERO BLANKET - NOR 40009638 01-6100-231 STREETS 49.10


06/19/20 39695 CORTLAND COMMUNITY LIBRA LAND/CASH CONTRIBUTIONS 061920 13-2407 LAND/CASH: PUBLIC LIBRARY 90.00


06/19/20 39696 CORTLAND FIRE PROTECTION  LAND/CASH CONTRIBUTIONS 061920 13-2401 LAND/CASH: CFPD 600.00


06/19/20 39697 CSR BOBCAT INC 061520 REFLECTIVE LENS 142508 01-6100-241 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINT. 32.54


06/19/20 39698 DEKANE EQUIPMENT CORPOR 061620 PULLEYS IA71655 01-6100-241 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINT. 48.43


06/19/20 39699 DEL'S FAMILY LANDSCAPING C 053120 MAY MOWING MC-005/31/2 01-6100-234 PARKS - MOWING 3,240.00


06/19/20 39700 EJ EQUIPMENT INC 061020 WIRE SEGMENTS - STREET S P23562 01-6100-241 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINT. 326.06


06/19/20 39701 ELBURN NAPA 060220 GAS FILLER NECK HOSE, NAP 731482 06-7300-241 M&O: VEH & EQUIP 76.11


06/19/20 39701 ELBURN NAPA 060820 BATTERY, CORE DEPOSIT 732326 06-7300-241 M&O: VEH & EQUIP 53.84


06/19/20 39702 FEHR-GRAHAM & ASSOCIATES  053120 J20-1 ROBINSON FARM UNIT 5 95049 01-6300-212 ENGINEERNG: REIMBURSABLE 235.00


06/19/20 39702 FEHR-GRAHAM & ASSOCIATES  053120 DRIVEWAY INSPECTIONS - GE 95050 01-6300-210 ENGINEERING EXPENSE 103.00


06/19/20 39702 FEHR-GRAHAM & ASSOCIATES  053120 MONTHLY NPDES INSPECTIO 95051 01-6300-211 ENGINEERING: NON-REIMBURSABLE 309.00


06/19/20 39703 FRONTIER 061020 ADMIN/TOWN HALL 061020 01-6000-314 TELEPHONE 202.75


06/19/20 39703 FRONTIER 061020 PUBLIC WORKS 061020 01-6100-314 TELEPHONE 135.98


06/19/20 39703 FRONTIER 061020 POLICE 061020 12-6200-314 TELEPHONE 290.47


06/19/20 39703 FRONTIER 061020 WATER 061020 07-7400-314 TELEPHONE 96.48


06/19/20 39703 FRONTIER 061020 SEWER 061020 06-7300-314 TELEPHONE 152.33


06/19/20 39704 GRAINGER 060220 PRESSURE SWITCH, FLYWHE 9548372243 06-7300-243 M&O: SEWER PLANT 601.50


06/19/20 39704 GRAINGER 060320 CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY, PR 9549626043 06-7300-243 M&O: SEWER PLANT 108.50


06/19/20 39705 ICCI INC 060920 MAY 2020 ZONING PERMITS 20200602 01-6300-213 PLANNING/ZONING/BUILDING 325.00


06/19/20 39705 ICCI INC 060920 J18-2 ROBINSON FARM UNIT 4 20200603 01-6300-215 ZONING ADM: REIMBURSABLE 65.00


06/19/20 39705 ICCI INC 060920 J20-1 ROBINSON FARM UNIT 5 20200603 01-6300-215 ZONING ADM: REIMBURSABLE 260.00


06/19/20 39705 ICCI INC 060920 ZONING SERVICES 5/24-6/6/20 20200603 01-6300-213 PLANNING/ZONING/BUILDING 1,332.50


06/19/20 39706 ICRMT 010620 2ND INSTALLMENT OF PROPE RCB0000000 01-6000-511 INSURANCE EXPENSE 4,870.00


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







TOWN OF CORTLAND Check Register - Generic: Month (Detail w/ GL Account Title) Page:     5


Check Issue Dates: 6/1/2020 - 6/30/2020 Aug 18, 2020  04:25PM


Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice GL Account Title Amount


Date # Payee # GL Account


06/19/20 39706 ICRMT 010620 2ND INSTALLMENT OF PROPE RCB0000000 01-6100-511 INSURANCE EXPENSE 5,233.00


06/19/20 39706 ICRMT 010620 2ND INSTALLMENT OF PROPE RCB0000000 12-6200-511 INSURANCE EXP 8,140.00


06/19/20 39706 ICRMT 010620 2ND INSTALLMENT OF PROPE RCB0000000 07-7400-511 INSURANCE EXPENSE 2,048.00


06/19/20 39706 ICRMT 010620 2ND INSTALLMENT OF PROPE RCB0000000 06-7300-511 INSURANCE EXPENSE 1,023.00


06/19/20 39707 IMPACT NETWORKING, LLC 061720 CONTRACT OVERAGE CHARG 1817049 12-6200-315 COPIES & PRINTING 28.96


06/19/20 39708 LAUTERBACH & AMEN LLP 060120 FINANCIAL SERVICES - MAY 2 45868 01-6000-214 AUDIT & ACCOUNTING  FEES 8,136.67


06/19/20 39708 LAUTERBACH & AMEN LLP 060120 FINANCIAL SERVICES - MAY 2 45868 06-7300-213 OTHER CONSULTING FEES 1,273.33


06/19/20 39708 LAUTERBACH & AMEN LLP 060120 FINANCIAL SERVICES - MAY 2 45868 07-7400-213 OTHER CONSULTING FEES 1,910.00


06/19/20 39709 LE PRINT EXPRESS 060520 EAGLES HOMES BLUEPRINT -  32061 01-6000-315 COPIES & PRINTING 9.00


06/19/20 39710 MENARDS 060120 POLEBARN SCREWS 27721 01-6100-232 MAINTENANCE TOWN GARAGE 25.99


06/19/20 39710 MENARDS 060120 CORRUGATED GALV 27737 01-6100-232 MAINTENANCE TOWN GARAGE 44.94


06/19/20 39710 MENARDS 060320 CONCRETE MIX 27907 01-6100-232 MAINTENANCE TOWN GARAGE 11.56


06/19/20 39710 MENARDS 060420 CONCRETE MIX, DURACELL A 27975 06-7300-241 M&O: VEH & EQUIP 52.09


06/19/20 39710 MENARDS 060520 TURF FOOD, STARTER  -NORT 28015 01-6100-224 STREET REPAIR MATERIALS 75.80


06/19/20 39710 MENARDS 060820 LAWN BLANKET - NORTH AVE 28202 01-6100-224 STREET REPAIR MATERIALS 39.99


06/19/20 39710 MENARDS 061020 10X3-1/8" GRK R4 28319 01-6100-232 MAINTENANCE TOWN GARAGE 12.20


06/19/20 39711 METROPOLITAN ALLIANCE OF  UNION DUES FOR JUNE 2020 061920 01-2140 UNION DUES 152.00


06/19/20 39712 MID-CITY OFFICE PRODUCTS I 061220 LASERJET INK, FILE FOLDERS 572779-0 01-6000-312 OFFICE SUPPLIES 168.60


06/19/20 39712 MID-CITY OFFICE PRODUCTS I 061220 COPIER PAPER 572780-0 12-6200-315 COPIES & PRINTING 36.74


06/19/20 39713 NORTHERN ILLINOIS TRAINING  060120 FY21 AUTHORIZED STRENGT 2104 12-6200-321 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,020.00


06/19/20 39714 PDC LABORATORIES INC WATER DISCHARGE TESTING I9418593 06-7300-345 WASTEWATER TESTING 204.30


06/19/20 39715 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINAN 053020 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE 3103973925 01-6000-321 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 263.91


06/19/20 39716 Pitney Bowes Inc 052920 RED INK CARTRIDGE 1015716859 01-6000-312 OFFICE SUPPLIES 84.99


06/19/20 39717 RAYNOR DOOR AUTHORITY 053120 SERVICE CALL, SCISSOR LIFT  32362 01-6100-232 MAINTENANCE TOWN GARAGE 220.00


06/19/20 39718 R-EQUIPMENT CO LLC 041720 FY 20 - BRP-CABLE WINCH KIT 03-117345 06-7300-241 M&O: VEH & EQUIP 144.99


06/19/20 39719 RUSH POWER SYSTEMS LLC 061120 WELL SERVICE - #2, #3, #4 7767 07-7400-243 M&O: WELL SYSTEM 1,950.00


06/19/20 39719 RUSH POWER SYSTEMS LLC 061120 SERVICE - CHESTNU GROVE,  7767 06-7300-243 M&O: SEWER PLANT 2,325.00


06/19/20 39719 RUSH POWER SYSTEMS LLC 061120 OIL AND COOLANT SAMPLES 7767 07-7400-243 M&O: WELL SYSTEM 144.00


06/19/20 39719 RUSH POWER SYSTEMS LLC 061120 OIL AND COOLANT SAMPLES 7767 06-7300-243 M&O: SEWER PLANT 144.00


06/19/20 39719 RUSH POWER SYSTEMS LLC 061120 SERVICE - STREET DEPT., OIL  7770 01-6100-232 MAINTENANCE TOWN GARAGE 411.00


06/19/20 39720 SIKICH LLP 060420 PROGRESS BILLING - FY20 A 445526 01-6000-214 AUDIT & ACCOUNTING  FEES 1,597.56


06/19/20 39720 SIKICH LLP 060420 PROGRESS BILLING - FY20 A 445526 06-7300-214 AUDIT FEES 701.22


06/19/20 39720 SIKICH LLP 060420 PROGRESS BILLING - FY20 A 445526 07-7400-214 AUDIT FEES 701.22


06/19/20 39721 SOFTWATERCITY INC. 053120 WATER PUMP RENT 053120 12-6200-312 OFFICE SUPPLIES 16.00


06/19/20 39722 UNITED RENTALS (NORTH AME 060120 COVID-19 - ADDITIONAL 1 DAY  181472504-0 01-6100-241 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINT. 205.02


06/19/20 39723 USABLUEBOOK 052620 HACH DPD SAMPLE PACKS 246913 07-7400-345 CHEMICALS & TESTING 123.32


06/19/20 39724 VERIZON CONNECT NWF, INC. 060120 MAY H5500 GPS OSV0000021 01-6100-314 TELEPHONE 97.25


06/19/20 39724 VERIZON CONNECT NWF, INC. 060120 MAY H5500 GPS OSV0000021 12-6200-314 TELEPHONE 97.25


06/19/20 39725 VERIZON WIRELESS 060120 BROADBAND - PD 9855728505 12-6200-314 TELEPHONE 209.72


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







TOWN OF CORTLAND Check Register - Generic: Month (Detail w/ GL Account Title) Page:     6


Check Issue Dates: 6/1/2020 - 6/30/2020 Aug 18, 2020  04:25PM


Check Check Description Invoice Invoice Invoice GL Account Title Amount


Date # Payee # GL Account


06/19/20 39725 VERIZON WIRELESS 060120 MOBILE - ADMIN 9855728505 01-6000-314 TELEPHONE 118.19


06/19/20 39725 VERIZON WIRELESS 060120 MOBILE - BUILDING 9855728505 01-6300-314 TELEPHONE 148.28


06/19/20 39725 VERIZON WIRELESS 060120 MOBILE - WATER 9855728505 07-7400-314 TELEPHONE 114.73


06/19/20 39725 VERIZON WIRELESS 060120 MOBILE - SEWER 9855728505 06-7300-314 TELEPHONE 66.10


06/19/20 39725 VERIZON WIRELESS 060120 MOBILE - STREETS 9855728505 01-6100-314 TELEPHONE 232.27


06/30/20 4220 HILL PEOPLE GEAR 060220 RECON KIT BAG 1023803 12-6200-198 UNIFORMS 105.00


06/30/20 4221 DIVERSIFIED BENEFIT SERVIC 060120 105-HRA 060120 01-6000-131 EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE 1,672.46


06/30/20 4222 VIKTOS 060320 Uniform Items - Pants E39717 12-6200-198 UNIFORMS 180.94


06/30/20 4223 DARN TOUGH VERMONT 060220 Uniform Items - Socks 355615 12-6200-198 UNIFORMS 230.58


06/30/20 4224 ROGUE FITNESS 060420 5.11 TacTec Plate Carrier USC0337771 12-6200-240 EQUIPMENT PURCHASES AND MAINT 240.66


06/30/20 4225 DIVERSIFIED BENEFIT SERVIC 060820 105-HRA 060820 01-6000-131 EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE 466.31


06/30/20 4226 HUMANA INSURANCE CO 052520 HEALTH INS. PREMIUMS, June  981752615 01-2100 HEALTH INS WITHHELD 14,957.57


06/30/20 4227 VENDOR SERV/FRONTIER FINA 061720 Agreement # L256509-000 - Pho 3320043 01-6000-314 TELEPHONE 230.06


06/30/20 4228 DIVERSIFIED BENEFIT SERVIC 061520 105-HRA 061520 01-6000-131 EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE 425.33


06/30/20 4229 DIVERSIFIED BENEFIT SERVIC 062220 105-HRA 062220 01-6000-131 EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE 178.55


06/30/20 4230 AMAZON 062920 Riffle Cleaning Kits 112-9803737 12-6200-240 EQUIPMENT PURCHASES AND MAINT 64.78


06/30/20 4231 RESOURCE BANK NA 061620 Halwood # 485393 - Principal 061620 01-6100-611 PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS 15,272.45


06/30/20 4231 RESOURCE BANK NA 061620 Halwood # 485393 - Interest 061620 01-6100-611 PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS 11,823.55


06/30/20 4250 IRS USA TAX PAYMENT / EFTPS 063020 PCOR 063020.PCO 01-6000-131 EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE 55.88


          Total 06/20: 153,997.11


          Grand Totals:  153,997.11


Funds: #01 = General Fund, #02 = Motor Fuel Tax, #03 = Capital Improvement Fund, #04 = Economic Development Fund, #05 = Special Project Fund, #06 = Sewer System,


#07 = Water System, #12 = Police Department, #13 = Restricted Assets Fund, #14 = TIF FUND


General Fund Departments: #01-6000 = Administration, #01-6100 = Operations & Maintenance, #01-6300 = Engineering, Zoning & Building


M = Manual Check, V = Void Check








Town of Cortland
Cash Summaries


Month Ending:


  Consolidated 


General W/O PD PD General MFT CIF Sewer Water Festival & Parade RAF TIF Total


Beginning Cash (202,163.25)$          -$                 (202,163.25)$        153,543.04$        109,519.72$      1,401,384.44$        654,706.88$        2,363.95$            1,292,652.96$      210,901.09$  3,622,908.83$     


Revenue over 


Expenses: 58,121.33$             22.15$             58,143.48$            10,086.84$          15,551.78$        (24,304.60)$             (32,561.44)$         0.14$                    15,292.82$            56,173.09$    98,382.11$          


Receivables


Prev month 95,097.69$             -$                 95,097.69$            -$                      22,948.50$        46,160.78$              24,482.97$          -$                      1,000.00$              -$                189,689.94$        


Current month 95,097.69$             -$                 95,097.69$            -$                      22,948.50$        27,437.06$              6,475.47$            -$                      1,000.00$              -$                152,958.72$        


Change in R'bles -$                         -$                 -$                        -$                      -$                    18,723.72$              18,007.50$          -$                      -$                       -$                36,731.22$          


Less: non-expense


AJE for Audit -$                         -$                 -$                        -$                      -$                    (162.86)$                  0.01$                    -$                      -$                       -$                (162.85)$              


Payables


Prev month 139,042.10$           22.15$             139,064.25$          -$                      150,175.59$      816,966.61$            72,902.80$          -$                      1,055,003.13$      -$                2,234,112.38$     


Current month 132,654.93$           -$                 132,654.93$          -$                      150,175.59$      816,593.90$            72,172.83$          -$                      1,064,556.84$      -$                2,236,154.09$     


Change in Pbles (6,387.17)$              (22.15)$            (6,409.32)$             -$                      -$                    (372.71)$                  (729.97)$              -$                      9,553.71$              -$                2,041.71$             


Ending Cash (150,429.09)$          -$                 (150,429.09)$        163,629.88$        125,071.50$      1,395,267.99$        639,422.98$        2,364.09$            1,317,499.49$      267,074.18$  3,759,901.02$     


Per Cash


Trial Balance: (150,429.09)$          -$                 (150,429.09)$        163,629.88$        125,071.50$      1,395,267.99$        639,422.98$        2,364.09$            1,317,499.49$      267,074.18$  3,759,901.02$     


June 30, 2020







TOWN OF CORTLAND


REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


GENERAL FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  53/19/2020     12:53PM       PAGE: 1


PROPERTY TAX


01-4052 RE TAX - CORPORATE LEVY 108,217.45 249,182.34 490,000.00 240,817.66 50.9


01-4058 RE TAX - IMRF LEVY 12,811.23 29,499.24 58,000.00 28,500.76 50.9


01-4059 RE TAX - SOC SEC LEVY 11,706.59 26,955.69 53,000.00 26,044.31 50.9


TOTAL PROPERTY TAX 132,735.27 305,637.27 601,000.00 295,362.73 50.9


ROAD & BRIDGE TAX


01-4071 ROAD & BRIDGE TAX REV 3,735.66 8,836.69 22,000.00 13,163.31 40.2


TOTAL ROAD & BRIDGE TAX 3,735.66 8,836.69 22,000.00 13,163.31 40.2


BUILDING & ZONING PERMITS


01-4081 BUILDING & ZONING PERMITS .00 .00 40,000.00 40,000.00 .0


01-4082 ZONING PERMITS 575.00 900.00 .00 (                   900.00) .0


01-4083 BUILDING PERMITS 2,624.25 3,184.25 .00 (                3,184.25) .0


01-4084 SITE GRADING PLAN REVIEW 400.00 500.00 .00 (                   500.00) .0


01-4085 PERMIT FOR CONSTR & MAINT 50.00 50.00 .00 (                     50.00) .0


TOTAL BUILDING & ZONING PERMITS 3,649.25 4,634.25 40,000.00 35,365.75 11.6


LAND/CASH REVENUE


01-4097 LAND/CASH REVENUE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0


TOTAL LAND/CASH REVENUE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0


INCOME TAX REVENUE


01-4101 STATE INCOME TAX REVENUE 26,665.86 69,716.26 425,000.00 355,283.74 16.4


TOTAL INCOME TAX REVENUE 26,665.86 69,716.26 425,000.00 355,283.74 16.4


SALES TAX


01-4122 SALES TAX 22,918.50 .00 321,000.00 321,000.00 .0


01-4123 LOCAL USE TAX 13,502.10 24,116.44 130,000.00 105,883.56 18.6


TOTAL SALES TAX 36,420.60 24,116.44 451,000.00 426,883.56 5.4







TOWN OF CORTLAND


REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


GENERAL FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 2


REPLACEMENT TAX - STATE


01-4141 REPLACEMENT TAX - STATE .00 176.60 23,600.00 23,423.40 .8


01-4142 VIDEO GAMING TAX - STATE .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0


01-4143 CANNABIS USE TAX - STATE 155.84 357.04 .00 (                   357.04) .0


TOTAL REPLACEMENT TAX - STATE 155.84 533.64 33,600.00 33,066.36 1.6


OTHER PERMITS


01-4151 OTHER PERMITS .00 25.00 5,000.00 4,975.00 .5


TOTAL OTHER PERMITS .00 25.00 5,000.00 4,975.00 .5


FRANCHISE FEES


01-4181 FRANCHISE FEES .00 .00 27,000.00 27,000.00 .0


TOTAL FRANCHISE FEES .00 .00 27,000.00 27,000.00 .0


SIMPLIFIED TELECOM TAX (IMF)


01-4201 SIMPLIFIED TELECOMM TAX (IMF) 903.30 8.08 12,000.00 11,991.92 .1


TOTAL SIMPLIFIED TELECOM TAX (IMF) 903.30 8.08 12,000.00 11,991.92 .1


REIMBURSEMENTS


01-4901 REIMBURSEMENTS .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0


01-4909 REIMBURSEMENTS - OTHER 1,377.80 1,502.80 .00 (                1,502.80) .0


TOTAL REIMBURSEMENTS 1,377.80 1,502.80 500.00 (                1,002.80) 300.6


MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE


01-4991 MISC REVENUE (                   184.25) 58.50 5,000.00 4,941.50 1.2


01-4996 BUSINESS LICENSES .00 .00 1,250.00 1,250.00 .0


TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE (                   184.25) 58.50 6,250.00 6,191.50 .9


INTEREST ON INVESTMENT


01-8011 INTEREST ON INVESTMENT 16.69 34.15 500.00 465.85 6.8


TOTAL INTEREST ON INVESTMENT 16.69 34.15 500.00 465.85 6.8







TOWN OF CORTLAND


REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


GENERAL FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 3


TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS


01-8101 TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS .00 .00 261,850.00 261,850.00 .0


01-8102 TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS .00 .00 92,679.00 92,679.00 .0


TOTAL TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS .00 .00 354,529.00 354,529.00 .0


SALE OF PROPERTY


01-8202 SALE OF EQUIPMENT .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0


TOTAL SALE OF PROPERTY .00 .00 50,000.00 50,000.00 .0


GRANTS


01-8301 GRANTS 20,000.00 20,000.00 .00 (              20,000.00) .0


TOTAL GRANTS 20,000.00 20,000.00 .00 (              20,000.00) .0


TOTAL FUND REVENUE 225,476.02 435,103.08 2,028,879.00 1,593,775.92 21.5







TOWN OF CORTLAND


EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


GENERAL FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 4


ADMINISTRATION


01-6000-110 SALARIES - ELECTED OFFICIALS 9,027.80 21,756.49 116,000.00 94,243.51 18.8


01-6000-119 SALARIES - CLERICAL WORKERS 10,476.01 23,568.19 97,900.00 74,331.81 24.1


01-6000-131 EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE 3,890.21 7,027.19 44,000.00 36,972.81 16.0


01-6000-133 IMRF CONTRIBUTION 1,754.19 4,042.81 17,700.00 13,657.19 22.8


01-6000-193 PAYROLL TAXES 1,437.70 3,319.85 16,400.00 13,080.15 20.2


01-6000-210 LEGAL FEES: REIMBURSABLE 262.50 262.50 .00 (                   262.50) .0


01-6000-211 LEGAL EXPENSE 1,268.75 1,268.75 80,000.00 78,731.25 1.6


01-6000-214 AUDIT & ACCOUNTING  FEES 9,734.23 17,870.90 110,000.00 92,129.10 16.3


01-6000-312 OFFICE SUPPLIES 416.36 1,673.57 5,000.00 3,326.43 33.5


01-6000-313 POSTAGE .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0


01-6000-314 TELEPHONE 778.74 1,306.13 17,000.00 15,693.87 7.7


01-6000-315 COPIES & PRINTING 9.00 9.00 2,500.00 2,491.00 .4


01-6000-321 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 263.91 2,268.24 5,000.00 2,731.76 45.4


01-6000-331 TRAVEL & TRAINING 169.45 328.05 8,000.00 7,671.95 4.1


01-6000-351 OFFICE EQUIP & MAINT 264.87 264.87 18,000.00 17,735.13 1.5


01-6000-511 INSURANCE EXPENSE 4,870.00 6,461.00 15,000.00 8,539.00 43.1


01-6000-531 REAL ESTATE TAXES .00 1,640.86 .00 (                1,640.86) .0


01-6000-550 LEGAL - 86 S. SOMONAUK .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0


01-6000-591 MISC EXPENSE .00 20.00 1,000.00 980.00 2.0


01-6000-812 CAP OUTLAY: EQUIP & FURN .00 .00 8,500.00 8,500.00 .0


01-6000-907 PD EXPENSE TO GENERAL FUND 37,747.59 86,935.76 725,000.00 638,064.24 12.0


TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 82,371.31 180,024.16 1,294,000.00 1,113,975.84 13.9







TOWN OF CORTLAND


EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


GENERAL FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 5


PUBLIC WORKS


01-6100-118 SALARIES - MAINT WORKERS 22,610.12 55,616.41 287,500.00 231,883.59 19.3


01-6100-131 EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE 3,452.39 5,903.60 38,500.00 32,596.40 15.3


01-6100-133 IMRF CONTRIBUTION 2,324.38 5,763.17 30,250.00 24,486.83 19.1


01-6100-193 PAYROLL TAXES 1,734.27 4,266.15 22,000.00 17,733.85 19.4


01-6100-197 DRUG/ALCOHOL PROGRAMS .00 .00 600.00 600.00 .0


01-6100-198 UNIFORMS .00 .00 1,800.00 1,800.00 .0


01-6100-218 MAINTENANCE - STREET LIGHTS .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0


01-6100-219 ELECTRIC - STREET LIGHTS 2,972.50 2,972.50 28,500.00 25,527.50 10.4


01-6100-220 ROAD SALT .00 .00 27,000.00 27,000.00 .0


01-6100-221 ROAD SIGNS .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0


01-6100-222 RAILROAD CROSSING MAINTENANCE .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0


01-6100-223 ROAD PATCH MIX .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0


01-6100-224 STREET REPAIR MATERIALS 1,186.79 1,732.88 20,000.00 18,267.12 8.7


01-6100-225 ROADWAY SAFETY PAINT .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0


01-6100-226 TOOLS AND HARDWARE .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0


01-6100-227 SMALL EQUIPMENT PURCHASES .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0


01-6100-231 STREETS 49.10 49.10 .00 (                     49.10) .0


01-6100-232 MAINTENANCE TOWN GARAGE 1,202.05 1,202.05 5,500.00 4,297.95 21.9


01-6100-234 PARKS - MOWING 3,240.00 3,240.00 19,500.00 16,260.00 16.6


01-6100-235 PARKS - EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE .00 813.55 10,000.00 9,186.45 8.1


01-6100-237 PARKS - MISC GROUNDS MAINT 1,105.00 1,105.00 .00 (                1,105.00) .0


01-6100-241 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINT. 2,440.20 2,999.00 20,000.00 17,001.00 15.0


01-6100-242 TOWN HALL MAINTENANCE 740.00 740.00 6,000.00 5,260.00 12.3


01-6100-245 EQUIPMENT RENTAL .00 .00 13,000.00 13,000.00 .0


01-6100-246 PORTABLE EQUIPMENT RENTAL .00 .00 2,900.00 2,900.00 .0


01-6100-247 SCAVENGER SERVICE .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0


01-6100-253 DETENTION POND REPAIRS .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0


01-6100-254 CATCH BASIN REPAIRS .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0


01-6100-255 STORM SEWER REPAIRS .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0


01-6100-256 SUMP LINE INSTALLATIONS .00 .00 400.00 400.00 .0


01-6100-258 FORESTRY .00 .00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .0


01-6100-312 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0


01-6100-314 TELEPHONE 520.77 889.02 5,500.00 4,610.98 16.2


01-6100-316 UTILITIES 93.67 93.67 9,000.00 8,906.33 1.0


01-6100-331 TRAVEL AND TRAINING .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0


01-6100-351 OFFICE EQUIP & MAINT .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0


01-6100-371 FUEL 745.67 1,935.00 16,000.00 14,065.00 12.1


01-6100-511 INSURANCE EXPENSE 5,233.00 14,874.00 33,500.00 18,626.00 44.4


01-6100-591 MISC EXPENSE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0


01-6100-611 PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS 27,096.00 27,096.00 30,750.00 3,654.00 88.1


01-6100-621 INTEREST EXPENSE .00 .00 23,900.00 23,900.00 .0


TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 76,745.91 131,291.10 690,350.00 559,058.90 19.0







TOWN OF CORTLAND


EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


GENERAL FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 6


OTHER DEPARTMENTS


01-6300-118 SALARIES - CODE OFFICIAL 3,113.96 7,563.35 29,000.00 21,436.65 26.1


01-6300-193 PAYROLL TAXES 238.21 578.60 2,400.00 1,821.40 24.1


01-6300-210 ENGINEERING EXPENSE 103.00 103.00 .00 (                   103.00) .0


01-6300-211 ENGINEERING: NON-REIMBURSABLE 309.00 309.00 77,500.00 77,191.00 .4


01-6300-212 ENGINEERNG: REIMBURSABLE 235.00 235.00 .00 (                   235.00) .0


01-6300-213 PLANNING/ZONING/BUILDING 2,177.50 2,177.50 105,154.00 102,976.50 2.1


01-6300-215 ZONING ADM: REIMBURSABLE 1,527.50 1,527.50 .00 (                1,527.50) .0


01-6300-216 ZONING ADMINISTRATION FEES 385.02 385.02 .00 (                   385.02) .0


01-6300-312 OFFICE SUPPLIES .00 .00 400.00 400.00 .0


01-6300-314 TELEPHONE 148.28 296.56 1,500.00 1,203.44 19.8


01-6300-315 COPIES & PRINTING .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0


01-6300-351 OFFICE EXPENSE .00 .00 2,750.00 2,750.00 .0


TOTAL OTHER DEPARTMENTS 8,237.47 13,175.53 218,954.00 205,778.47 6.0


TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 167,354.69 324,490.79 2,203,304.00 1,878,813.21 14.7


NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 58,121.33 110,612.29 (            174,425.00) (            285,037.29) 63.4







TOWN OF CORTLAND


REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 7


MOTOR FUEL TAX REVENUES


02-4011 MFT APPROPRIATION 10,027.31 10,027.31 155,000.00 144,972.69 6.5


TOTAL MOTOR FUEL TAX REVENUES 10,027.31 10,027.31 155,000.00 144,972.69 6.5


SOURCE 405


02-4050 REBUILD ILLINOIS .00 46,901.63 .00 (              46,901.63) .0


TOTAL SOURCE 405 .00 46,901.63 .00 (              46,901.63) .0


INTEREST ON INVESTMENT


02-8011 INTEREST ON INVESTMENT 59.53 154.63 3,100.00 2,945.37 5.0


TOTAL INTEREST ON INVESTMENT 59.53 154.63 3,100.00 2,945.37 5.0


TOTAL FUND REVENUE 10,086.84 57,083.57 158,100.00 101,016.43 36.1







TOWN OF CORTLAND


EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 8


MOTOR FUEL EXPENSES


02-6400-235 CONT MAINT: ENGINEER .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0


02-6400-370 GENERAL MAINTENANCE .00 .00 158,605.00 158,605.00 .0


TOTAL MOTOR FUEL EXPENSES .00 .00 183,605.00 183,605.00 .0


TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 183,605.00 183,605.00 .0


NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 10,086.84 57,083.57 (              25,505.00) (              82,588.57) 223.8







TOWN OF CORTLAND


REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 9


ELECTRICITY


03-4011 UTILITY TAX - ELECTRICITY 6,659.33 6,659.33 88,000.00 81,340.67 7.6


TOTAL ELECTRICITY 6,659.33 6,659.33 88,000.00 81,340.67 7.6


GAS


03-4021 UTILITY TAX - GAS 3,298.93 3,298.93 45,000.00 41,701.07 7.3


TOTAL GAS 3,298.93 3,298.93 45,000.00 41,701.07 7.3


TELEPHONE


03-4031 SIMPLIFIED TELECOMM TAX (UT) 3,184.04 (                       8.08) 45,000.00 45,008.08 .0


TOTAL TELEPHONE 3,184.04 (                       8.08) 45,000.00 45,008.08 .0


SALES TAX


03-4041 NON HOME RULE SALES TAX 17,462.54 .00 235,000.00 235,000.00 .0


TOTAL SALES TAX 17,462.54 .00 235,000.00 235,000.00 .0


INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS


03-8011 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 24.26 48.53 5,000.00 4,951.47 1.0


TOTAL INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 24.26 48.53 5,000.00 4,951.47 1.0


SOURCE 810


03-8101 TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS .00 .00 (              24,000.00) (              24,000.00) .0


TOTAL SOURCE 810 .00 .00 (              24,000.00) (              24,000.00) .0


TOTAL FUND REVENUE 30,629.10 9,998.71 394,000.00 384,001.29 2.5







TOWN OF CORTLAND


EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 10


CAPITAL IMPR EXPENSES


03-6500-421 COMMUNITY PROGRAMS 1,750.00 1,939.52 15,000.00 13,060.48 12.9


03-6500-522 NPDES PERMIT FEE .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0


03-6500-726 DONATIONS- COMMUNITY AGENCIES .00 500.00 5,000.00 4,500.00 10.0


03-6500-837 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0


03-6500-840 HOLIDAY DECORATIONS .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0


03-6500-842 SIDEWALKS, NEW CONSTRUCTION .00 .00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .0


03-6500-843 TOWN GARAGE FINISHING ITEMS .00 .00 11,855.00 11,855.00 .0


03-6500-910 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 13,327.32 13,327.32 (            325,000.00) (            338,327.32) 4.1


03-6500-912 LOAN PAYMENTS .00 .00 54,650.00 54,650.00 .0


TOTAL CAPITAL IMPR EXPENSES 15,077.32 15,766.84 (            220,995.00) (            236,761.84) 7.1


TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 15,077.32 15,766.84 (            220,995.00) (            236,761.84) 7.1


NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 15,551.78 (                5,768.13) 614,995.00 620,763.13 (      .9)







TOWN OF CORTLAND


REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


SEWER SYSTEM FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 11


SERVICE FEES


06-4011 SERVICE FEES 369.46 252.81 529,000.00 528,747.19 .1


TOTAL SERVICE FEES 369.46 252.81 529,000.00 528,747.19 .1


LATE CHARGES


06-4021 LATE CHARGES 883.13 503.13 23,000.00 22,496.87 2.2


TOTAL LATE CHARGES 883.13 503.13 23,000.00 22,496.87 2.2


BAD CHECK CHARGES


06-4041 BAD CHECK CHARGES .00 .00 50.00 50.00 .0


TOTAL BAD CHECK CHARGES .00 .00 50.00 50.00 .0


SOURCE 405


06-4051 PERMITS .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0


TOTAL SOURCE 405 .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0


MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE


06-4991 MISC REVENUE .50 88.00 .00 (                     88.00) .0


TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE .50 88.00 .00 (                     88.00) .0


INTEREST ON INVESTMENT


06-8011 INTEREST ON INVESTMENT 464.90 1,199.93 15,000.00 13,800.07 8.0


TOTAL INTEREST ON INVESTMENT 464.90 1,199.93 15,000.00 13,800.07 8.0


GRANTS


06-8300 GRANT REVENUE .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0


TOTAL GRANTS .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0


TOTAL FUND REVENUE 1,717.99 2,043.87 579,550.00 577,506.13 .4







TOWN OF CORTLAND


EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


SEWER SYSTEM FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 12


SEWER SYSTEM EXPENSES


06-7300-118 SALARIES: MAINT WORKERS 5,692.99 14,233.15 73,538.00 59,304.85 19.4


06-7300-131 EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE 1,035.70 1,771.04 9,500.00 7,728.96 18.6


06-7300-133 IMRF CONTRIBUTION 597.20 1,493.06 7,680.00 6,186.94 19.4


06-7300-193 PAYROLL TAXES 435.51 1,088.81 5,640.00 4,551.19 19.3


06-7300-198 UNIFORMS .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0


06-7300-211 LEGAL/COLLECTION EXPENSE .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0


06-7300-212 ENGINEERING EXPENSE .00 .00 12,500.00 12,500.00 .0


06-7300-213 OTHER CONSULTING FEES 1,273.33 2,546.66 16,000.00 13,453.34 15.9


06-7300-214 AUDIT FEES 701.22 701.22 4,500.00 3,798.78 15.6


06-7300-218 EQUIPMENT .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0


06-7300-221 UTILITIES 8,398.28 8,398.28 96,000.00 87,601.72 8.8


06-7300-241 M&O: VEH & EQUIP 1,508.58 1,508.58 3,000.00 1,491.42 50.3


06-7300-243 M&O: SEWER PLANT 3,281.37 5,699.75 40,000.00 34,300.25 14.3


06-7300-311 OFFICE EXPENSE 284.74 1,026.50 6,000.00 4,973.50 17.1


06-7300-312 ANNUAL PERMIT FEES .00 3,000.00 11,000.00 8,000.00 27.3


06-7300-313 TRAINING .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0


06-7300-314 TELEPHONE 260.71 479.14 5,000.00 4,520.86 9.6


06-7300-345 WASTEWATER TESTING 422.10 422.10 17,500.00 17,077.90 2.4


06-7300-371 GAS & PETROLEUM 87.88 87.88 2,200.00 2,112.12 4.0


06-7300-491 GRANT EXPENSE 1,016.00 1,016.00 3,500.00 2,484.00 29.0


06-7300-511 INSURANCE EXPENSE 1,023.00 1,249.00 10,000.00 8,751.00 12.5


06-7300-531 REAL ESTATE TAXES .00 3,721.62 .00 (                3,721.62) .0


06-7300-591 MISC EXPENSES 3.98 5.75 500.00 494.25 1.2


06-7300-611 DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL .00 .00 46,357.00 46,357.00 .0


06-7300-621 INTEREST EXPENSE .00 .00 14,591.00 14,591.00 .0


06-7300-812 CAP OUTLAY: EQUIPMENT .00 .00 112,000.00 112,000.00 .0


TOTAL SEWER SYSTEM EXPENSES 26,022.59 48,448.54 507,806.00 459,357.46 9.5


TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 26,022.59 48,448.54 507,806.00 459,357.46 9.5


NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (              24,304.60) (              46,404.67) 71,744.00 118,148.67 (  64.7)







TOWN OF CORTLAND


REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


WATER SYSTEM FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 13


SERVICE FEES


07-4011 SERVICE FEES 881.71 1,109.02 510,000.00 508,890.98 .2


TOTAL SERVICE FEES 881.71 1,109.02 510,000.00 508,890.98 .2


LATE CHARGES


07-4021 LATE CHARGES 55.73 33.35 1,000.00 966.65 3.3


TOTAL LATE CHARGES 55.73 33.35 1,000.00 966.65 3.3


BAD CHECK CHARGES


07-4041 BAD CHECK CHARGES .00 .00 50.00 50.00 .0


TOTAL BAD CHECK CHARGES .00 .00 50.00 50.00 .0


PERMITS


07-4051 PERMITS .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0


TOTAL PERMITS .00 .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0


METER SALES


07-4301 METER SALES 600.00 600.00 5,000.00 4,400.00 12.0


TOTAL METER SALES 600.00 600.00 5,000.00 4,400.00 12.0


ACCESS FEES


07-4402 ACCESS 1 IN 300.00 400.00 .00 (                   400.00) .0


TOTAL ACCESS FEES 300.00 400.00 .00 (                   400.00) .0


MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE


07-4991 MISC INCOME .00 35.00 1,500.00 1,465.00 2.3


TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE .00 35.00 1,500.00 1,465.00 2.3







TOWN OF CORTLAND


REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


WATER SYSTEM FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 14


INTEREST ON INVESTMENT


07-8011 INTEREST ON INVESTMENT 201.41 512.05 7,500.00 6,987.95 6.8


TOTAL INTEREST ON INVESTMENT 201.41 512.05 7,500.00 6,987.95 6.8


LEASE INCOME


07-8801 LEASE INCOME 310.00 620.00 3,720.00 3,100.00 16.7


TOTAL LEASE INCOME 310.00 620.00 3,720.00 3,100.00 16.7


TOTAL FUND REVENUE 2,348.85 3,309.42 538,770.00 535,460.58 .6







TOWN OF CORTLAND


EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


WATER SYSTEM FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 15


WATER SYSTEM EXPENSES


07-7400-118 SALARIES: MAINT WORKERS 8,539.49 21,349.73 110,400.00 89,050.27 19.3


07-7400-131 EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE 1,553.60 2,656.67 13,000.00 10,343.33 20.4


07-7400-133 IMRF CONTRIBUTION 895.78 2,239.58 12,000.00 9,760.42 18.7


07-7400-193 PAYROLL TAXES 653.27 1,633.26 8,400.00 6,766.74 19.4


07-7400-198 UNIFORMS .00 .00 600.00 600.00 .0


07-7400-212 ENGINEERING EXPENSE .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0


07-7400-213 OTHER CONSULTING FEES 1,910.00 3,820.00 24,000.00 20,180.00 15.9


07-7400-214 AUDIT FEES 701.22 701.22 4,400.00 3,698.78 15.9


07-7400-221 UTILITIES 5,231.66 5,231.66 57,500.00 52,268.34 9.1


07-7400-222 RADIUM REMOVAL PROCESSING 7,907.63 15,815.26 96,000.00 80,184.74 16.5


07-7400-241 M&O: VEH & EQUIP 1,770.49 1,770.49 5,000.00 3,229.51 35.4


07-7400-243 M&O: WELL SYSTEM 2,130.39 2,202.90 30,000.00 27,797.10 7.3


07-7400-311 OFFICE EXPENSE 782.89 1,524.65 11,000.00 9,475.35 13.9


07-7400-314 TELEPHONE 253.49 464.70 5,000.00 4,535.30 9.3


07-7400-331 TRAVEL & TRAINING .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0


07-7400-341 METER PURCHASES & SUPPLIES .00 4,700.00 15,000.00 10,300.00 31.3


07-7400-343 CONNECTION EXP .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0


07-7400-345 CHEMICALS & TESTING 327.32 4,021.38 17,000.00 12,978.62 23.7


07-7400-346 TOOLS .00 .00 1,250.00 1,250.00 .0


07-7400-371 GAS & PETROLEUM 205.06 205.06 6,000.00 5,794.94 3.4


07-7400-511 INSURANCE EXPENSE 2,048.00 4,598.00 15,000.00 10,402.00 30.7


07-7400-811 CAP OUTLAY: CONSTRUCT .00 .00 130,000.00 130,000.00 .0


07-7400-812 CAP OUTLAY: EQUIPMENT .00 .00 15,000.00 15,000.00 .0


TOTAL WATER SYSTEM EXPENSES 34,910.29 72,934.56 588,550.00 515,615.44 12.4


TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 34,910.29 72,934.56 588,550.00 515,615.44 12.4


NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (              32,561.44) (              69,625.14) (              49,780.00) 19,845.14 (139.9)







TOWN OF CORTLAND


REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


FESTIVAL & PARADE FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 16


DONATIONS


09-4961 DONATIONS .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0


TOTAL DONATIONS .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0


FUNDRAISERS


09-4971 FUNDRAISERS .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0


TOTAL FUNDRAISERS .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0


INTEREST


09-8011 INTEREST ON INVESTMENT .14 .26 15.00 14.74 1.7


TOTAL INTEREST .14 .26 15.00 14.74 1.7


TOTAL FUND REVENUE .14 .26 1,265.00 1,264.74 .0







TOWN OF CORTLAND


EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


FESTIVAL & PARADE FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 17


FESTIVAL & PARADE EXPENSES


09-7700-218 CONTRACTED GROUPS/EVENTS/LABOR .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0


09-7700-241 RENTALS .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0


09-7700-312 SUPPLIES .00 .00 250.00 250.00 .0


09-7700-313 POSTAGE .00 .00 100.00 100.00 .0


09-7700-315 COPIES, PRINTING & ADVERTISING .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0


09-7700-571 PRIZES & AWARDS .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0


TOTAL FESTIVAL & PARADE EXPENSES .00 .00 2,350.00 2,350.00 .0


TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 2,350.00 2,350.00 .0


NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES .14 .26 (                1,085.00) (                1,085.26) .0







TOWN OF CORTLAND


REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


POLICE DEPARTMENT


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 18


PROPERTY TAX


12-4052 RE TAX - POLICE PROTECTION 20,873.00 48,062.33 94,500.00 46,437.67 50.9


TOTAL PROPERTY TAX 20,873.00 48,062.33 94,500.00 46,437.67 50.9


FINES & FORFEITURES


12-4062 PD FINES 1,740.37 1,836.61 11,500.00 9,663.39 16.0


TOTAL FINES & FORFEITURES 1,740.37 1,836.61 11,500.00 9,663.39 16.0


MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE


12-4991 MISC REVENUE - OTHER 20.00 40.00 500.00 460.00 8.0


12-4992 MISC REVENUE - POLICE REPTS 10.00 20.00 .00 (                     20.00) .0


TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 30.00 60.00 500.00 440.00 12.0


TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS


12-8101 TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS 37,747.59 86,935.76 725,000.00 638,064.24 12.0


TOTAL TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS 37,747.59 86,935.76 725,000.00 638,064.24 12.0


TOTAL FUND REVENUE 60,390.96 136,894.70 831,500.00 694,605.30 16.5







TOWN OF CORTLAND


EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


POLICE DEPARTMENT


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 19


POLICE DEPARTMENT


12-6200-114 SALARIES - REGULAR 29,971.99 74,239.42 371,000.00 296,760.58 20.0


12-6200-115 SALARIES - SPECIAL ASSIGNMENT 5,651.86 13,314.12 48,500.00 35,185.88 27.5


12-6200-116 SALARIES - OVERTIME .00 166.64 5,000.00 4,833.36 3.3


12-6200-119 SALARIES - CLERICAL 67.16 186.37 2,500.00 2,313.63 7.5


12-6200-131 EMPLOYEE HEALTH INS 5,944.83 10,771.00 62,500.00 51,729.00 17.2


12-6200-133 IMRF CONTRIBUTION 3,177.68 7,881.46 39,000.00 31,118.54 20.2


12-6200-193 PAYROLL TAXES 2,600.88 6,401.23 32,000.00 25,598.77 20.0


12-6200-198 UNIFORMS 516.52 681.41 5,000.00 4,318.59 13.6


12-6200-199 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 577.58 577.58 5,000.00 4,422.42 11.6


12-6200-211 LEGAL EXPENSE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0


12-6200-240 EQUIPMENT PURCHASES AND MAINT 305.44 525.19 10,000.00 9,474.81 5.3


12-6200-241 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 415.35 599.82 10,000.00 9,400.18 6.0


12-6200-242 M&O: OFFICE .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0


12-6200-261 TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE .00 .00 61,500.00 61,500.00 .0


12-6200-312 OFFICE SUPPLIES 16.00 141.98 750.00 608.02 18.9


12-6200-313 POSTAGE .00 .00 125.00 125.00 .0


12-6200-314 TELEPHONE 688.51 1,188.72 15,000.00 13,811.28 7.9


12-6200-315 COPIES & PRINTING 65.70 88.69 500.00 411.31 17.7


12-6200-321 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,020.00 2,364.32 9,000.00 6,635.68 26.3


12-6200-331 TRAVEL & TRAINING (                   475.00) 425.00 6,500.00 6,075.00 6.5


12-6200-351 OFFICE EQUIP & MAINT 372.95 642.56 5,000.00 4,357.44 12.9


12-6200-361 DUI PREVENTION EQUIP .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0


12-6200-371 GAS & PETROLEUM 811.36 811.36 13,500.00 12,688.64 6.0


12-6200-421 COMMUNITY PROGRAMS .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0


12-6200-511 INSURANCE EXP 8,140.00 13,452.00 30,000.00 16,548.00 44.8


12-6200-512 LEGAL - UNION .00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .0


12-6200-550 TECHNOLOGY UPGRADES 500.00 1,560.00 27,500.00 25,940.00 5.7


12-6200-591 MISC EXPENSE .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0


TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT 60,368.81 136,018.87 770,375.00 634,356.13 17.7


TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 60,368.81 136,018.87 770,375.00 634,356.13 17.7


NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 22.15 875.83 61,125.00 60,249.17 1.4







TOWN OF CORTLAND


REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


RESTRICTED ASSETS FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 20


DONATIONS


13-4166 CEMETERY RECEIPTS 1,100.00 1,550.00 .00 (                1,550.00) .0


13-4167 WASTE COLLECTION AGREEMENT .00 .00 16,000.00 16,000.00 .0


TOTAL DONATIONS 1,100.00 1,550.00 16,000.00 14,450.00 9.7


PARK DEVELOPMENT FEES


13-4170 AIRPORT ROAD FARM RENT .00 .00 85,000.00 85,000.00 .0


13-4171 PARK LOT DEV FEES - GENERAL 100.00 100.00 1,000.00 900.00 10.0


TOTAL PARK DEVELOPMENT FEES 100.00 100.00 86,000.00 85,900.00 .1


SOURCE 420


13-4204 CAP CONTRIB: TOWN HALL BLDG 350.00 350.00 3,000.00 2,650.00 11.7


TOTAL SOURCE 420 350.00 350.00 3,000.00 2,650.00 11.7


INTEREST


13-8011 INTEREST ON INVESTMENT 436.50 1,114.57 15,000.00 13,885.43 7.4


TOTAL INTEREST 436.50 1,114.57 15,000.00 13,885.43 7.4


SOURCE 810


13-8101 TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS 13,327.32 13,327.32 .00 (              13,327.32) .0


TOTAL SOURCE 810 13,327.32 13,327.32 .00 (              13,327.32) .0


TOTAL FUND REVENUE 15,313.82 16,441.89 120,000.00 103,558.11 13.7







TOWN OF CORTLAND


EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


RESTRICTED ASSETS FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 21


RESTRICTED ASSETS


13-8000-352 ADMINISTRATIVE FUNDS .00 .00 25,000.00 25,000.00 .0


13-8000-821 CAP OUTLAY: PARK DEV (GENERAL) .00 .00 256.00 256.00 .0


13-8000-833 CAP OUTLAY: PUBL WKS FACILITY .00 .00 415.00 415.00 .0


13-8000-836 CEMETERY MAINT / IMPROVEMENTS .00 .00 17,722.00 17,722.00 .0


13-8000-839 AIRPORT ROAD PROPERTY TAXES .00 32,453.66 .00 (              32,453.66) .0


13-8000-840 AIRPORT ROAD UTILITIES 21.00 21.00 .00 (                     21.00) .0


13-8000-850 STREET REPAIRS .00 .00 30,000.00 30,000.00 .0


13-8000-908 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS .00 .00 (              92,679.00) (              92,679.00) .0


TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS 21.00 32,474.66 (              19,286.00) (              51,760.66) 168.4


TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 21.00 32,474.66 (              19,286.00) (              51,760.66) 168.4


NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 15,292.82 (              16,032.77) 139,286.00 155,318.77 (  11.5)







TOWN OF CORTLAND


REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


TIF FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 22


INTEREST INCOME


14-8010 TIF RE TAX RECEIVED 56,108.49 97,367.85 50,000.00 (              47,367.85) 194.7


14-8011 INTEREST ON INVESTMENT 64.60 158.75 1,000.00 841.25 15.9


TOTAL INTEREST INCOME 56,173.09 97,526.60 51,000.00 (              46,526.60) 191.2


TOTAL FUND REVENUE 56,173.09 97,526.60 51,000.00 (              46,526.60) 191.2







TOWN OF CORTLAND


EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET


FOR THE 2 MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30, 2020


TIF FUND


PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT


FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 17 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  54/19/2020     12:54PM       PAGE: 23


TIF EXPENSES


14-6600-211 LEGAL EXPENSE .00 .00 37,500.00 37,500.00 .0


14-6600-212 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0


14-6600-999 CONTINGENCIES .00 .00 28,500.00 28,500.00 .0


TOTAL TIF EXPENSES .00 .00 75,000.00 75,000.00 .0


TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 .00 75,000.00 75,000.00 .0


NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 56,173.09 97,526.60 (              24,000.00) (            121,526.60) 406.4







June 2020


485393


Beginning Balance 6/1/2020 456,782.27$      


Principal Paid Fiscal Year 2021: (15,272.45)$       


Interest Paid Fiscal Year 2021: 11,823.55$         


Current Balance: 441,509.82$      


Remaining Debt Schedule


Principal Interest


Fiscal Year Ending 2021 19,130.46$          6,528.83$           


Fiscal Year Ending 2022 39,216.18$          12,102.40$         


Future 398,435.63$        52,554.47$         


Total: 456,782.27$        71,185.70$         


* rate change 3 year variable


Beginning Balance 6/1/2020 767,523.58$      


Principal Paid Fiscal Year 2021:


Interest Paid Fiscal Year 2021:


Current Balance: 767,523.58$      


Remaining Debt Schedule


Principal Interest


Fiscal Year Ending 2021 46,356.17$          14,590.61$         


Fiscal Year Ending 2022 47,255.16$          13,691.62$         


Future 673,912.25$        119,580.06$      


Total: 767,523.58$        147,862.29$      


Wastewater Project: L17-5003


Maturity Date 9/25/2034, Int Rate: 1.93%, Semi-Annual Payments


General Fund - IEPA Loan


General Fund - Streets and Maintenance


Facility 250 S Halwood


Loan Date:  12/31/11,  Maturity Date:  12/30/20,  Loan Amount:  $655,200.00


Interest Rate:  4.30%,  Semi-Annual P&I due 6/30 and 12/31







June 2020


Beginning Balance 6/1/2020 126,227.09$      


Principal Paid Fiscal Year 2021: (12,065.05)$       


Interest Paid Fiscal Year 2021: 1,262.27$           


Current Balance: 114,162.04$      


Remaining Debt Schedule


Principal Interest


Fiscal Year Ending 2021 12,185.70$          1,141.62$           


Fiscal Year Ending 2022 24,738.18$          1,916.45$           


Fiscal Year Ending 2023 25,235.43$          1,419.21$           


Fiscal Year Ending 2024 25,742.65$          911.98$              


Fiscal Year Ending 2025 26,128.13$          394.55$              


Total: 114,030.09$        5,783.81$           


Restricted Asset Fund Loan


North Avenue Road Repairs


Maturity Date 12/31/2024, Int Rate: 2%, Semi-Annual Payments







Town of Cortland


Restricted Assets


Balance Deposits Expenditures Balance


6/1/2020 6/30/2020 6/30/2020 6/30/2020


Customer Deposits


13-2010 AP 0.00$                   0.00$                     


13-2020 Deferred Revenue 71,000.00$        71,000.00$           


13-2355 Airport Road Security Deposits -$                     -$                       


Engineering Deposits


13-2316 DCUSD #428 51,668.29$        51,668.29$           


Land/Cash Contributions


13-2401 Cortland Fire Protection District 600.00$              300.00$           600.00$             300.00$                


13-2405 Sycamore School District # 427 -$                     898.71$           898.71$                


13-2406 #428 Schools 84,294.56$        84,294.56$           


13-2407 Cortland Library 90.00$                45.00$             90.00$               45.00$                   


Storm Sewer Escrow


13-2411 Neumann Homes Inc 79,850.65$        79,850.65$           


Capital Contributions #428 Schools


13-2432 DRH Cambridge - Richland Trails 238,427.54$      238,427.54$        


Library Building


13-2452 Library Building 6,403.76$           6,403.76$             


Fire Department Building


13-2461 DRH Cambridge - Richland Trails 91,144.90$        91,144.90$           


13-2462 Montalbano - Chestnut Grove 8,285.90$           8,285.90$             


WasteWater Irrigation Land Acquisition


13-2501 SSA # 4 Connection Fees 136,000.00$      8,500.00$       144,500.00$        


13-2505 SSA # 8 Connection Fees -$                     -$                       


13-2551 Waste Water Irrigation Land Fee 48,000.00$        500.00$           48,500.00$           


Festival and Parade


13-2900 Festival Parade -$                     -$                       


Capital Contributions - Town Use (By Purpose)


13-3100 McPhillips Park Improvements 14,305.60$        14,305.60$           


13-4096 Town Services -$                     -$                       


13-4166 Cemetery Maintenance / Improvements 4,781.89$           1,100.00$       5,881.89$             


13-4167 Road Improvements - DC Trash Agreeement 16,770.86$        16,770.86$           


13-4168 Airport Road Property Rent (31,720.28)$       21.00$               (31,741.28)$         


13-4170 Airport Road Farm Rent 66,849.66$        66,849.66$           


13-4161 Parks Improvements 256.00$              256.00$                


13-4171 Park Development Fees 3,900.00$           100.00$           4,000.00$             


13-4201 Public Works Facility -$                     -$                       


13-4202 Police Facility 415.45$              415.45$                


13-4203 Emergency Siren 2,637.96$           2,637.96$             


13-4204 Town Hall 4,900.00$           350.00$           5,250.00$             


13-4205 Sports Complex 151,749.85$      151,749.85$        


13-4206 Capital Improvements 52,194.23$        436.50$           52,630.73$           


13-4206 SCADA - Chestnut Grove 6,370.60$           6,370.60$             


13-4350 Road Improvements 79,404.32$        79,404.32$           


13-4352 Administrative Fund 100,285.16$      100,285.16$        


13-4354 Punch List Follow Up Items 12,072.46$        12,072.46$           


13-8101 Transfers from Other Funds - Town Loan 2,881.73$           13,327.32$     16,209.05$           


13-8701 InvestForlcosures  (Dep less Ltr of Credit) -$                     -$                       


13-8703 Transfer to Other funds -$                     -$                       


13-8702 Performance Bond - Nature's Crossing 119,333.88$      119,333.88$        


604,114.45$      15,313.82$     21.00$               619,407.27$        


"FUND BAL" 381,896.91$      


Reserve for McPhillips 14,305.60$        


YTD Revs over Exps (16,032.77)$       


Fund Equity 380,169.74$      Total Assets 1,444,726.58$     


Total Liabilities & Equity 1,444,726.58$     


Account Interest 436.50$              -$                       


13-8011


* Account Interest posted to Capital Improvements


June 30, 2020







SUMMARY OF INCOME AND EXPENSES FOR THE MONTH OF:


June 30, 2020


Beginning Receipts/ Dividends/ Expenditures/ Ending


Balance Transfers In Interest Transfers Out Balance


SSA #1 Special Tax Refunding Bonds 2017


Bond & Interest Fund 19,704.81$          198,283.47$     0.31$          217,988.59$        


2017 Reserve Fund 353,446.67$        3.10            353,449.77$        


Special Redemption Account -$                     -$                     


Special Reserve Fund 2017 40,043.37$          0.31            40,043.68$          


Administrative Expense Fund 18,193.52$          0.18            18,193.70$          


Costs of Issuance -$                     -$                     


Total SSA #1 Refunding Bonds 431,388.37$        198,283.47$     3.90$          -$                  629,675.74$        


SSA #4-8 (Sheaffer Project)


Bond & Interest Fund 178,654.70$        14,000.00$       1.55$          1,595.67$         191,060.58$        


Special Redemption Account -$                     -$                     


Debt Service Reserve Fund 0.48$                   0.48$                   


Administrative Expense Fund 0.00$                   1,595.67           1,595.67           0.00$                   


Total SSA #4-8 178,655.18$        15,595.67$       1.55$          3,191.34$         191,061.06$        


SSA #9 (Richland Trails)


SSA #9


Bond & Interest Fund 78,155.39$          24,437.50$       0.45$          102,593.34$        


Reserve Fund 143,926.41$        13.58          143,939.99$        


Improvement Fund -$                     -$                     


Administrative Expense Fund 12,745.18$          1.29            3,000.00           9,746.47$            


Total SSA #9 234,826.98$        24,437.50$       15.32$        3,000.00$         256,279.80$        


Total All SSA 844,870.53 238,316.64 20.77 6,191.34 1,077,016.60

































EQUIPMENT RENTAL AGREEMENT 


TOWN OF CORTLAND 
STREET ADDRESS 


CITY STATE 


CORTLAND IL 
Telep one 


815-756-9041 


John Kocher 
Equipment will be used at: County, City, State 


ZIPCODE 


60122 


2019 344L 
$3300 per Month 


Customer is responsible to provide all risk insurance 
Lessor hereby leases to Lessee the equipment identified above ("Equipment") for the term 
and with the rental payments set out above. Rental payments shall be made to Lessor at 
the address shown above, subject to the provision of Paragraph 4 on the reverse side 
hereof. The Equipment will be transported to and from Lessor's place of business during 


the rental term at Lessee's expense. Lessee also agrees to pay any additional charge 
noted above upon or before receiving the Equipment from the Lessor 


It is contemplated that the Equipment will be operated for not more than 


NO. OF HOURS IN ANY ONE DAY 


NO. OF HOURS IN ANY ONE WEEK 
NO. OF HOURS IN ANY ONE MONTH 


8 
40 


176 


Lessee agrees to pay additional rental prorated at the applicable daily, weekly or monthly 
rate for each hour the Equipment is used in excess of such time. The additional rent for 
excess hours of use will be paid at the time the Equipment is returned or, if the Equipment 
is leased for more than thirty days, on the first day of the month following such use, . If an 
hour meter is furnished, (1) Lessee agrees to keep it connected to the Equipment and in 
good working condition at all times, and (2) it will be used as the conclusive measure of 
the number of hours of operation. 


If Lessee fails to return the Equipment by the end of the rental term, Lessee will pay 
additional rental, prorated at one and one-half times the normal rental , for each day that 
me c.qu1pmern remains unre1urnea 


Lessee assumes all risks and liability for and agrees to hold Lessor and its assigns harmless 


from all personal injuries and deaths, property damage, suits, claims (including third party 


:;!aims), losses, expenses, costs and attorney fees, arising from or in connection with the 


Lessee's use, possession, entrustment to others, or transportation of the Equipment. 


Lessee, at Lessee's own expense, will carry general liability insurance with limits of liability 


not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $1 ,000,000 aggregate, unless greater liability 


limits are specified below 


PER OCCURENCE LIMIT - $1,000,000 
AGGREGATE LIMIT- $1,000,000 


_essee agrees to turn1sh a cert1t1cate ot insurance to Lessor's sat1stactmn ev1denc1ng 
_essee·s compliance with the torego1ng requirement and name the Lessor as 
nsured on the Lessee's general l1ab1l1ty policy upon demand by Lessor 


APR24,08 Govt Bid# DlrAcctJ/ 


8511 
LESSOR NAME & ADDRESS 


West Side Tractor Sales Co. 


1400 W. 0 den Ave. 


Naperville, IL 60563 
county Cade LESSEE WILL NOT REMOVE THE EQUIPMENT FROM THIS 


LOCATION WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM LESSOR 


120,000.00 


TOT AL PRESENT '4'ALUE $ 120,000.00 


. . I . . . . . 
Lessee shall indemnify Lessor against all loss or damage to the Equipment while 1t 1s 
out of lessor's possession. The af ount of any such loss or damage will be based on the 
value shown above. Damage to t~e Equipment, other than a total loss. will not abate 
or excuse the making of prescribe


1
d rental payments. Lessee agrees to use and care for 


the Equipment in a careful an prudent manner. 


. I . . . . 
Lessee agrees to pay all operat1n@ and maintenance expenses while the Equipment 1s 


out of the Lesso~s possession, ai d to make or secure an needed repairs. All repairs 


shall be at Lessee's expense, ex] pt to the extent that Lessor performs repairs and 


obtains compensation for doing so from the manufacturer. To the extent permitted by 
law, neither Lessor, its assigns, uie wholesale distributor or the manutacturer makes any 


representation or promise as to th~ quality, performance or freedom from defect of the 
Equipment, and NO IMPLIED WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILIITY OR FITNESS IS 
MADE. Neither Lessor, its assignJ. the wholesale distributor or the manufacturer will be 
liable for any incidental or conseqLential damages which may result from the use, 
performance or failure of the Equipment. Lessee acknowledges that the Eqiupment is of 
a size, design and capacity selected by Lessee and that Lessee is satisfied that the 
Equipment is suitable for Lessee' 


1 
purposes. 


Lessee will return the Equipment to Lessor in as good condition as received, reasonable 


wear and tear excepted, by the erld of the rental term. If the Equipment is not in such 
gooa cona111on upon its return 10 t.!essor ana Lessor e1ects to repair n, Lessee w11 pay 


for such repairs at Lessor's regult shop rates. 


Lessor may at Lesso~s option, replace the Equipment with a similar machine at any 


time during the rental term. Lesso/ will notifiy Lessee if Lessor intends to exercise this 


option, and Lessee will have thre4 (3) business days following such notice in which to 


exercise the purchase option prov"ded below or return the Equipment to Lessor. Upon 


return of the Equipment Lessor, ti e rental term hereunder shall temrinate, and the 


parties will enter into a new original Rental Agreement covering the replacement machine. 


Such new Rental Agreement shalll extended at a minimum, for the reminder of the Rental 


Agreements rental term and have b rental rate no greater than the rate for rental of the 


Equipment hereunder. I 
Upon or betore the end at the renr.1 term, Lessee may elect to purchase the 
l::qu1pment tor the "I otal !-'resent alue" spec1t1ed on the H.ental Agreement, and 
may apply to such purchase price __ ot all rental previously paid. 
An election to purchase will be ev denced by execution ot a purchase order torm 
supplied by Lessor 


THIS RENTAL AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET OUT ON THE REVERSE SIDE HEREOF 
_ESSEE(Customer) - all new equipment rented hereunder was received iwith Operators 


Vlanuals, and operation and servicing have been explained to me. 


Signature Date: 


LESSOR (Dealer) - The equipment rented hereunder as set up, inspected and if new, 


adjusted according to factory recommendations before delivery. Operation and servicing 


have been explained to the Lessee. 


Signature Date 







WESTSIDe:' 


~ 
TRACTOR 
SALES CO 


WSTS 2020 SNOW PROGRAM 


RENTAL AGREEMENT 


• FOUR MONTH MINIUM GUARANTEED RENTAL (NO CREDITS ISSUED) 


• $1099 MINIMUM SERVICE CHARGE 


• MACHINES SUBJECT TO PRIOR SALE 


• NO SALT LOADING, any machines with damage associat . d with Salt or 


corrosive materials will be the responsibility of the lesse~. 


BY SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT I AGREE TO THE ABOVE TERMS AND POLICIES 


NAME ----------------------


SIGNATURE ____________________ _ 


DATE ______________________ _ 








REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT


by and between


TOWN OF CORTLAND
DEKALB COUNTY, ILLINOIS


and


WORTHINGTON PROPERTIES LTD
(Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208, and 209)


_______________, 2019







REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
by and between


TOWN OF CORTLAND, DEKALB COUNTY, ILLINOIS
and


WORTHINGTON PROPERTIES LTD


THIS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into this ________ day of _________,
2019, by the TOWN OF CORTLAND, an Illinois Municipal corporation (the ”Town“), and
WORTHINGTON PROPERTIES LTD., an Illinois Corporation, or its Assignee, (the “Developer“). 


RECITALS


WHEREAS, the Developer is or will be the owner of certain real property including the
property commonly known as Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208, and 209 all in Robinson Farm Unit 2,
as described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and


WHEREAS, the Town, and KCR, LLC entered into a certain Predevelopment Agreement,
approved June 27, 2011, by Town Ordinance No. 2011-14, with regard to the entire Robinson Farm
Unit 2, and other property (collectively referred to therein as ”the Developer’s Property”); and 


WHEREAS, under the provisions of the Predevelopment Agreement, the Town and KCR, LLC
agreed to segregate in a separate account within the special tax allocation fund to be created by the
Town under the Act (the “Special Tax Allocation Fund”) no less than seventy-five percent (75%) of
the net incremental increases in real estate taxes derived from the Property, which a separate account is
to be designated as the ”Robinson Farm Property Special Account” (the ”Special Account“). All
monies deposited to this Special Account shall be used for payment or reimbursement of
Redevelopment Project Costs under the Act. The other twenty-five percent (25%) shall remain in the
Special Tax Allocation Fund to be used by the Town as permitted in the Act; and


WHEREAS, said Redevelopment Agreement provided that the Town and KCR, LLC shall
enter into a Redevelopment Agreement containing the same essential terms and conditions; and


WHEREAS, Resource Bank, N.A. has acquired all of KCR, LLC’s interest in said lots; and 


WHEREAS, this Agreement shall be the Redevelopment Agreement for  Lots 201, 202, 203,
206, 207, 208 and 209 in Robinson Farm Unit 2, superceding and replacing any prior agreements
regarding these lots; and 


WHEREAS, Resource Bank, N.A., or its successor in interest, has or will, prior to any
Developer Reimbursement, assigned and transferred all interest in said lots to Developer who intends


to aquire Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 in Robinson Farm Unit 2, and redevelop said  Lots
201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 with improvements, and the parties hereto desire to set forth their


agreement with regard to the incremental increase in real estate taxes derived from said Lots 201, 202,
203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 as redeveloped; 


2







AGREEMENTS


NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:


A. PRELIMINARY STATEMENTS


1. The parties agree that the matters set forth in the recitals above are true and correct and form
a part of this Agreement, and they are to be construed as binding statements of the Agreement.


2. Each of the Parties represents that it has taken all actions necessary to authorize its
representatives to execute this Agreement. To this end, the Town agrees that the Town has taken all
actions necessary to enter into this Agreement.


B. DEVELOPER COMMITMENTS


1. As a condition of this Agreement, the Developer will use its best efforts to develop Lots
201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 for the Approved Uses.   


2. The Developer shall update the Town no less than monthly to the progress of the
redevelopment of Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209.


C. TOWN COMMITMENTS


1. As a condition to this Agreement, the Town has used its best efforts and taken all action
required and as allowed by law to create the TIF District for the maximum duration allowed under the
TIF Act, which TIF District includes  Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209.  In connection
therewith, the Town has caused the Redevelopment Plan to include the development of Lots 201, 202,
203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 and to contain a sufficient description of Redevelopment Project Costs so
as to permit the sale and development of the Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209.


D. INCENTIVES


In consideration of the Developer’s commitments described above, the Town agrees to extend
to the Developer the following incentives to assist the redevelopment of Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207,
208 and 209:


1. On an annual basis, the Town shall deposit into the Special Tax Allocation Fund all of the
real estate tax increment generated by  Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209  promptly upon
receipt of the same from DeKalb County. Then, seventy-five percent (75%) of the net increment
generated by the  Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 shall be allocated to and promptly
deposited by the Town Treasurer into the Special Account for the purpose of paying Redevelopment
Project Costs incurred by the Developer or in connection with  Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and
209  (including but not limited to costs incurred by others in furtherance of  Lots 201, 202, 203, 206,
207, 208 and 209  or assignees of the Developer).  “Real estate tax increment” is the amount of ad
valorem taxes, if any, paid in respect of Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 and its


3







improvements which is attributable to the increase in the equalized assessed value of such property
and improvements over the initial equalized assessed value of such property and improvements,
calculated as set forth in the Act. ”Net increment” is defined as annual real estate tax increment from 
Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 calculated in accordance with the Act after payments to the
affected schools as may be required under the Act and after payment for a proportionate amount of
administrative fees and costs.


2. Redevelopment Project Costs are intended to include all costs eligible as “Redevelopment
Project Costs” as such term is defined under the Act.  The parties have set forth the estimated eligible
project costs on the attached Exhibit B.


E. LIMITATION OF INCENTIVES TO DEVELOPER


1. To the extent that Developer incurs eligible project costs, then the Developer shall be
reimbursed by the Town for all Redevelopment Project Costs permitted by the Act incurred in
connection with the development of  Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 from the real estate tax
increment generated from  Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 and deposited into the Special
Account, but only for the term of the TIF District, which term shall not be less than the maximum term
allowed by the Act.


2. Notwithstanding the foregoing, payments to the Developer under this Agreement shall be
subordinated to the payment of any legal fees and other costs associated with any lawsuits challenging
the establishment or administration of the TIF District. The Town and the Developer agree that such,
legal fees and other costs, shall be apportioned, as reasonably determined by the Town, among all
recipients of real estate tax increment generated from the TIF District.


F. PAYMENT OF REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT COSTS


1. Payment to the Developer for Redevelopment Project Costs as set forth by the Act shall be
made by one or more requisitions for payment (each, a “Requisition”) submitted from time to time by
the Developer to the Town using the form attached hereto as Exhibit C. The Developer may submit for
prior approval by the Town as eligible expenses hereunder estimates of costs before they are incurred
subject to later confirmation by actual bills. The Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs to be paid out
hereunder shall be paid to Developer, provided Developer incurs such eligible project costs, or as
Developer directs in writing.


2. Each Requisition must be accompanied by verified bills or statements of suppliers,
contractors, or professionals together with Mechanic’s Lien Waivers as reasonably required by the
Town. The Developer shall disclose any construction work claims or possible liens to the Town and
shall provide the Town with a contractor’s affidavit including the work to be done and the contract
amounts for all subcontractors for which a Requisition is submitted to the Town.


3. The Town shall approve or disapprove a Requisition by written notice to the Developer
within thirty (30) days after receipt of the Requisition. Approval of the Requisition shall not be
unreasonably withheld. If a Requisition is disapproved by the Town, the reasons for disallowance shall
be set forth in writing and the Developer may resubmit the Requisition with such additional


4







information as may be required and the same procedures set forth herein shall apply to such re-
submittals. The parties agree that the only reason for disallowance shall be that the Developer is not in
compliance with the provisions of this Section F. or that the expenditures contained in the Requisition
are not eligible Redevelopment Project Costs under the Act.


4. All sums approved shall then be paid from the Special Account to the Developer as soon as
deposit of the same in the form of real estate tax increment is made into the Special Account. Payment
shall be made within thirty (30) days after approval if funds are currently available in the Special
Account, and, if funds are not then available, payment shall be made within thirty (30) days after funds
become available.


5. To the extent the Developer incurs Redevelopment Project Costs in any years that exceed
the available funds in the Special Account that year, the excess Redevelopment Project Costs shall
carry over in to future years until paid in full or until the end of the TIF District, whichever occurs
first.


6. The Parties acknowledge that the determination of Redevelopment Project Costs and
qualifications for reimbursement hereunder are subject to changes or interpretation made by
amendments to the Act and administrative rules or judicial interpretation during the term of this
Agreement. The Town has no obligation to the Developer to attempt to modify those decisions, but
will reasonably assist the Developer in every respect to obtain approval of Redevelopment Project
Costs and to effectuate reimbursements.


7. Redevelopment Project Costs shall be defined to include all costs defined in the Act as
“redevelopment project costs.”


8. Upon request of the Developer, the Town and the Developer shall use commercially
reasonable efforts to issue one or more series of tax increment financing revenue bonds or other credit
facilities, including TIF developer notes, for purposes of reimbursing or evidencing the Developer’s
Redevelopment Project Costs. Such bonds and credit facilities are hereinafter collectively referred to
as “the Bonds.”  The Bonds shall be repaid solely from Developer’s share of the net real estate tax
increment derived from the  Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 project and shall not be secured
by the full faith and credit of the Town or constitute a general obligation of the Town. The Town and
the Developer shall reasonably cooperate (provided, there does not then exist an uncured event of
default of this Agreement on the part of the Developer) in all matters with respect to the Bonds,
including, but not limited to, the amount, repayment terms and timing of procedures required for
issuance; provided, that the Developer shall be responsible for all costs of issuance. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the Town shall not be obligated to issue the Bonds until the Developer has provided
Town with a written commitment from a purchaser of the Bonds or a letter from a nationally
recognized bond underwriter that the Bonds are saleable.


For all bonds or other credit facilities, bond counsel and underwriters shall be selected by
mutual agreement of the parties and all costs thereof, including costs of issuing the same, shall be paid
by the Developer; provided, that all such counsel and underwriters shall have significant experience in
the type of credit facility to be issued. The terms and conditions for issuance shall be those that are, in


5







the opinion of such counsel and underwriters, usual and customary for the type of credit facility to be issued.


G. LIMITED OBLIGATION


The Town’s obligation hereunder to pay or reimburse the Developer for Redevelopment
Project Costs is a limited obligation to be paid solely from the Special Account. Said obligation does
not now and shall never constitute an indebtedness of the Town within the meaning of any State of
Illinois constitutional or statutory provision, and shall not constitute or give rise to a pecuniary liability
of the town or a charge or lien against the Town’s general credit or taxing power.


H.  LIMITED LIABILITY OF TOWN
TO OTHERS FOR DEVELOPER=S EXPENSES


Except as set forth in Section F. there shall be no obligation by the Town to pay costs of
developing Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209, nor shall the Town be obligated to make direct
payments to any other contractor, subcontractor, mechanic or materialman providing services or
materials to Developer. The Developer shall indemnity and hold the Town harmless on any claims
arising out of development of Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209, excluding claims arising
from acts or omissions of the Town or claims arising in connection with public improvements after the
Town has accepted such improvements following dedication.


I.  COOPERATION OF THE PARTIES


The Town and the Developer agree to reasonably cooperate with each other concerning the
development of Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209.


J.  DEFAULT; CURE; REMEDIES


In the event of a default under this Agreement by any party hereto (the ADefaulting Party@),
which default is not cured within the cure period provided for below, then the other party (the ”Non-
defaulting Party”) shall have an action for damages, or in the event damages would not fairly
compensate the Non-defaulting Party for the Defaulting Party’s breach of this Agreement, the Non-
defaulting Party shall have such other rights and remedies as are available to them at law or in equity.


In the event a Defaulting Party shall fail to perform a monetary covenant which it is required to
perform under this Agreement, it shall not be deemed to be in default under this Agreement unless it
shall have failed to perform such monetary covenant within thirty (30) days of its receipt of a notice
from a Non-defaulting Party specifying that is has failed to perform such monetary covenant. In the
event a Defaulting party fails to perform any non-monetary covenant as and when it it required to
under this Agreement, it shall not be deemed to be in default if it shall have cured such default within
thirty (30) days of its receipt of a notice from a Non-defaulting Party specifying the nature of the
default, provided, however, with respect to those non-monetary defaults which are not capable of
being cured within such thirty (30) day period, it shall not be deemed to be in default if it commences
curing within such thirty (30) days period, and thereafter diligently and continuously prosecutes the
cure of such default until the same has been cured.


6







Any damages payable by the Town hereunder shall be limited to the real estate tax increment
payable to the Developer under the terms of this Agreement.


K.  ASSIGNMENT


The rights and obligations of the Developer under this Agreement shall be fully assignable by
means of advance written notice to the Town. The assignment of this Agreement shall in no event
relieve the Developer of its obligations hereunder, which obligations shall survive any assignment
hereof.


L.  PREPAYMENTS


Should the annual real estate tax increment generated by Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and
209 be sufficient to pay all of the Developer’s Redevelopment Project Costs prior to the expiration of
the term of this Agreement, the Town may, in its sole discretion, elect to pay all then remaining
payments in a single lump sum payment or other prepayments.


M.  WAIVER


Any party to this Agreement may elect to waive any remedy it may enjoy hereunder, provided
that no such waiver shall be deemed to exist unless the party waiving such right of remedy does so in
writing. No such waiver shall obligate such party to waive any right of remedy hereunder or shall be
deemed to constitute a waiver of other rights and remedies provided said party pursuant to this
Agreement.


N.  SEVERABILITY


If any section, subsection, term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any
party or circumstance shall, to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of said section,
subsection, term or provision of this Agreement or the application of same to parties or circumstances
other than those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby.


O.  NOTICES


All notices, demands, request, consents, approvals or other instruments required or permitted
by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be executed by the party or an officer, agent or attorney
of the party, and shall be deemed to have been effective as of the date of actual delivery, if delivered
personally, or as of the third (3rd) day from and including the date of posting, if mailed by registered or
certified mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid addressed as follows:


TO THE DEVELOPER: TO THE TOWN:
Worthington Properties Ltd. Town of Cortland
460 Briargate Dr., Ste. 500 P.O. Box 519
South Elgin, IL 60177 Cortland, IL 60112-0519


7







WITH A COPY TO:
Jacob & Klein, Ltd.
1701 Clearwater Avenue
Bloomington, Illinois 61704


P.  SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST


This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns.


Q.  NO JOINT VENTURE, AGENCY, OR PARTNERSHIP CREATED


Neither anything in this Agreement nor any acts of the parties to this Agreement shall be
construed by the parties or any third person to create the relationship of a partnership, agency, or joint
venture between or among such parties.


R.  TERM OF THE AGREEMENT


This Agreement shall expire upon the expiration of the Redevelopment Plan adopted by the
Town or sooner if the Developer received all incentives included herein.


S.  TOWN PUBLIC PROJECTS


The Town intends to use all or part of the Town=s share of the net increment generated by the
Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 for other public projects within the Redevelopment Project
Area. The Town shall be eligible for reimbursement of the costs of doing so, as well as other eligible
costs incurred by the Town, from the Town=s share.


T.  WARRANTY OF SIGNATORIES


The signatories of each party warrant full authority to both execute this Agreement and to bind
the entity for which they are signing.


U.  INDEMNIFICATION OF TOWN


The Developer acknowledges that it is responsible for compliance with the Illinois Prevailing
Wage Act; to the extent such is applicable. Applicability is to be determined by the Developer and the
Developer shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town, and all the Town elected or appointed
officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, engineers, consultants and attorneys
(collectively, the ”Indemnified Parties”), from any and all claims that may be asserted against the
Indemnified Parties or one or more of them, in connection with the applicability, determination, and/or
payments made under the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act (820 ILCS 130/0.01 et.seq.), the Illinois
Procurement Code, and/or any similar State or Federal law or regulation. This obligation to indemnify
and hold harmless obligates Developer to defend any such claim and/or action, pay any liabilities


8







and/or penalties imposed, and pay all defense costs of the Town, including but not limited to the
reasonable attorney fees of the Town.


V.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAW


The Developer shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and
ordinances applicable to Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209, including its permitting,
construction, operation, and maintenance.  All lots shall be developed in compliance with the Town of
Cortland P.U.D., subdivision, and development ordinances. 


W.  DEVELOPER REPRESENTATIONS


The Developer represents and warrants that it is an Illinois corporation, lawfully organized and
qualified to perform its respective obligations hereunder. It further represents and warrants that it is
solvent, has sufficient funds, and is financially able to perform the obligations hereunder. The
Developer further covenants that no officer, director, shareholder agent, or employee has made,
offered, or given, directly or indirectly, to the Town, or any of its representatives, anything of value,
except for those items in which fair consideration was received, in an attempt to unlawfully influence
his or her official capacity with the Town.


X.  NO PERSONAL LIABILITY


No covenant or agreement contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to be the covenant or
agreement of any official, officer, agent, attorney, or employee of the Town, or of the Developer in his
or her individual capacity and no such individual shall have any personal liability or accountability by
reason of or arising out of the execution, delivery and/or performance of this Agreement or any of the
terms contained herein.


(Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank.)


9







IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their duly authorized officers on the above date at Cortland, Illinois.


TOWN OF CORTLAND, ILLINOIS, DEVELOPER:
an Illinois municipal corporation: WORTHINGTON PROPERTIES LTD


an Illinois corporation


By: _____________________________ By:  _________________________________
Its: _____________________________ Its:  _________________________________


ATTEST:


_______________________________
Town Clerk 


10







EXHIBIT A


LEGAL DESCRIPTION


LOTS 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 IN ROBINSON FARM P.U.D.-PHASE II, A PLANNED
UNIT DEVELOPMENT BEING A RESUBDIVISION OF LOTS 25, 26, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, AND 34
IN ROBINSON FARM P.U.D.-PHASE I AND PART OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 29,
TOWNSHIP 40 NORTH, RANGE 5 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPLE MERIDIAN, IN THE
TOWN OF CORTLAND, DEKALB COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 


11







EXHIBIT B 
SUMMARY OF ESTIMATED TIF ELIGIBLE PROJECT COSTS


WORTHINGTON ENTERPRISES LTD. 


Cortland TIF District in the Town of Cortland, DeKalb County, Illinois 


Project Description:  Developer to construct an age targeted senior rental housing per the Affordable Housing
Requirements of TIF Act.  (PHASE I)


PIN NOS.: 09-29-254-004, 09-29-254-037, 09-29-254-053 AND 09-29-254-056
Street Location:   Lots 201, 202, 203, 206, 207, 208 and 209 Robinson Farm Unit 2


Estimated TIF Eligible Project Costs: 


Land and Building Acquisition Costs …………………………….. $  540,000.00


Site Preparation/Clearing/Grading ………………………………… $  225,000.00


Planning, Engineering, & Architectural ………………………….. $  243,000.00


Legal Fees ………………………………………………………… $  108,000.00


Accounting, Financial Fees, Professional Fees …………………… $    90,000.00


Construction Interest (30% Limited) ..........………………………. $    67,500.00


Public Infrastructure Improvements………………………………. $  570,350.00


Building Permits…………………………………………………… $  517,500.00


Private Infr. Imp. Driveways ………………………………………. $   135,000.00


Utilities Extension ………………………………………………... $   175,500.00


Total Estimated TIF Eligible Project Costs ………………………………. $2,671.850.00


12







EXHIBIT C


TOWN OF CORTLAND, ILLINOIS
CORTLAND TIF DISTRICT 


PRIVATE PROJECT
REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT


Date:   ______________, 20__


Attention:  Town Clerk, Town of Cortland


Re: TIF Redevelopment Agreement executed on ______________, 2019 by and between the Town of
Cortland, Illinois, and WORTHINGTON PROPERTIES LTD (“Developer”).


The Town of Cortland is hereby requested to disburse funds from the Special Tax Allocation fund, pursuant to
the Redevelopment Agreement described above, to the above referenced Developer in the amount and for the
purpose set forth in this Request for Reimbursement.  The terms used in this Request for Reimbursement shall
have the same meanings given to those terms in the Redevelopment Agreement. 


1. REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT NO. __________


2. PAYMENT DUE TO:  __________________________________________________


3. The amount requested to be disbursed pursuant to this Request for Reimbursement will be
used to reimburse the Developer for TIF Eligible Project Costs detailed in “Exhibit B.1” or
in “Exhibit B.2” of the Redevelopment Agreement. 


4. AMOUNT REQUESTED TO BE DISBURSED1:


Description of TIF Eligible Project Cost Amount
$
$
$
$
$
$


TOTAL $


5. The undersigned certifies that: 


(i) The amounts included in (4) above were made or incurred or financed and were
necessary for the Project and were made or incurred in accordance with the
construction contracts, plans and specifications heretofore in effect; and 


1 See detailed verification of TIF Eligible Project Costs to be disbursed in attached Exhibit B


13







(ii) The amounts paid or to be paid, as set forth in this Request for Reimbursement,
represent the total of funds due and payable for TIF Eligible Redevelopment Project
Costs; and 


(iii) The expenditure for which the amount is requested represents proper
Redevelopment Project Costs as identified in the “Incentives” described in Section
D of the Redevelopment agreement, have not been included in any previous Request
for Reimbursement, have been properly recorded on the Developer’s books and are
set forth with invoices attached for all sums for which reimbursement is requested,
and proof of payment of the invoices; and 


(iv) The amounts requested are no greater than those necessary to meet obligations due
and payable or to reimburse the Developer for its funds actually advanced for
Redevelopment Project Costs; and


(v) The Developer is not in default under the Redevelopment Agreement and nothing
has occurred to the knowledge of the Developer that would prevent the Developer
from performing its obligations under the Redevelopment Agreement; and 


(vi) The Developer shall indemnify and hold harmless the Town, and all Town elected
or appointed officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, engineers,
consultants and attorneys (collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”), from any and all
claims that may be asserted against the Indemnified Parties or one or more of the, in
connection with the applicability, determination, and/or payments made under the
Illinois Prevailing Wage Act (20 ILCS 130/0.01 et.seq.), the Illinois Procurement
Code, and/or any similar State or Federal law or regulation.  This obligation to
indemnify and hold harmless obligates Developer to defend any claim and/or action,
pay any liabilities and/or penalties imposed, and pay all defense costs of Town
including but not limited to the reasonable attorney fees of Town. 


6. Attached to this Request for Reimbursement is proof of payment by the Developer for the
eligible project costs for which reimbursement is being requested. 


BY:______________________________________ (Developer)


TITLE:  _____________________________________


14







RECOMMENDATION BY:  Jacob & Klein, Ltd. 
The Economic Development Group, Ltd. 


________ Approve By:  __________________________________


________ Disapprove Reason for Disapproval: 


______________________________________


______________________________________


APPROVED:  TOWN OF CORTLAND, ILLINOIS


BY: _______________________________________


TITLE:  ______________________________________   DATE:  ________________________


ATTACHMENT:  
  Exhibit A.  Verification of TIF Eligible Project Costs


15








Page 1 of 3 
 


Dated: June 30, 2020 
 
To:  Resource Bank, N.A. 
 555 Bethany Road 
 DeKalb, IL 60115 
 
Re:  General Intangible Control Agreement 
 
The undersigned, Worthington Properties, Ltd. (the “Borrower”) is entering into a security 
agreement with Resource Bank, N.A. (“Secured Party”). In furtherance of that security agreement, 
the undersigned, together with Secured Party, request that the Town of Cortland (“the Town”) 
enter into this Agreement regarding the control of reimbursements of TIF Eligible Project Costs 
pursuant to an Assignment of Rights and Obligations Under TIF District Development Agreement 
(“Assignment Agreement”) dated the 30th day of June, 2020, by and between Resource Bank, N.A. 
(as Assignor) and Worthington Properties, Ltd. (as Assignee). As part of the security agreement 
entered into between Borrower and Secured Party, the Borrower has agreed to grant the Secured 
Party a security interest in: (a) reimbursements pursuant to the Assignment Agreement; and (b) 
any and all proceeds of the foregoing, whether now or hereafter existing or arising (collectively, 
the “Collateral”). 
  
By authenticating the acknowledgment in the space provided below, the Town agrees with the 
Borrower as follows: 
  
1.  In order to provide the Secured Party with control, as defined in the Illinois Uniform 
Commercial Code, over the collateral, the Borrower and Secured Party hereby agree that the 
Secured Party shall be entitled at any time to give the Town instructions as to the disposition of 
any funds from time to time that are reimbursed pursuant to the Assignment Agreement, or as to 
any other matters relating to the Assignment Agreement or any of the Collateral. The Town hereby 
agrees to comply with any such instructions without any further consent from either the Borrower 
or the Secured Party and without regard to any other agreement that may exist between Secured 
Party and Borrower. 
 
2.  The Borrower acknowledges that this Agreement includes any and all instructions which 
the Secured Party may deliver to the Town. In particular, the Borrower understands that such 
instructions may include instructions to direct reimbursement funds to or for the benefit of the 
Secured Party. The Town shall be fully entitled to rely upon such instructions from the Secured 
Party even if such instructions are contrary to any instructions or demands that the Borrower may 
give to the Town.  The Borrower confirms that the Town shall have no liability to the Borrower 
for wrongful reimbursements. 
 
3.  The Town shall have no duty to inquire or determine whether the Secured Party is entitled, 
under any separate agreement between the Borrower and the Secured Party, to give any such 
instructions. By this Agreement, the Borrower acknowledges that the Town may be instructed to 
reimburse funds pursuant to the Assignment Agreement at times when the Borrower may believe 
that the Secured Party is not entitled to give such instructions, and the Borrower accepts that risk 
and requests that the Town honors the instructions of the Secured Party notwithstanding anything 







Page 2 of 3 
 


that the Borrower may say to the contrary. The Borrower further agrees to be responsible for the 
Town’s reasonable charges and to indemnify the Town from and to hold the Town harmless against 
only such loss, cost, or expense that the Town may sustain or incur in acting upon instructions 
which the Town believes in good faith to be instructions from the Secured Party. 
 
4.  Unless the Town has obtained the prior written consent of the Secured Party, the Town 
agrees not to exercise any rights of recoupment or set off, or to assert any security interest or other 
lien that the Town may at any time have against or in any of the Collateral on account of any credit 
or other obligation owed to the Town by the Borrower or any other person. The Town may, 
however, from time to time debit the Collateral for any of the Town’s customary charges in 
maintaining the Collateral or for reimbursement for the reversal of any provisional credits granted 
by the Town to the Collateral, to the extent, in each case, that the Borrower has not separately paid 
or reimbursed the Town therefor. 
 
5.  In addition, the Town represents and warrants to the Secured Party that the Town has not 
entered, and the Town covenant with the Secured Party that the Town will not enter, into any 
agreement with any other person by which the Town is obligated to comply with instructions from 
such other person as to the disposition of funds pursuant to the Assignment Agreement or other 
dealings with any of the Collateral.  
 
6.  This Agreement shall: 
 


a.  control over any conflicting agreement between the Borrower and the Town; and, 
 
b.  be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois. 
 


7. This Agreement is the entire agreement, and supersedes any prior agreements and 
contemporaneous oral agreements of the parties concerning its subject matter.  No amendment of, 
or waiver of a right under this Agreement will be binding unless it is in writing and signed by the 
party to be charged. 
 
8. To the extent a provision of this Agreement is unenforceable, this Agreement will be 
construed as if the unenforceable provision were omitted. 
 
9. A successor to or assignee of Creditor’s rights and obligations under the security agreement 
between Creditor and Customer will succeed to Creditor’s rights and obligations under this 
Agreement. 
 
10.  A notice or other communication to a party under this Agreement will be in writing (except 
that entitlement orders may be given orally), will be sent to the party’s address set forth below or 
to such other address as the party may notify the other parties, and will be effective on receipt. 


 
 
 
 







Page 3 of 3 
 


If the Town agrees to accept the foregoing, please so indicate by executing and returning to the 
Borrower the enclosed duplicate of this letter. 
  
 
Town of Cortland: 
 
 
By:        
 
Its:        
 
 
 
Acknowledged: 
 
BORROWER: 
Worthington Properties, Ltd., an Illinois Corporation, 
 
 
By:        
 
Its:        
 
 
SECURED PARTY: 
 
Resource Bank, N.A., 
 
 
By:        
 
Its:        
 





